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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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In the face of the unstable environment in the financial year of 2009-
2010, the Group has continued to fine-tune its business strategies.
The Group recorded total revenues of HK$663,261,352 in this
financial year, around 12% lower than those of HK$752,605,040 in
the last year. The Group’s results have been substantially improved.
The Group recorded a loss before tax of HK$21,990,089 in this
financial year, around 66% lesser than those of HK$64,467,436 in
the last year.

The Asian markets in which the Group operated have been hit hard
by the worldwide financial tsunami. The results of the Group in the
first half of this financial year were adversely affected and the
decrease in revenue was not unexpected. In view of such market
conditions, the Group has adopted a prudent financial strategy,
targeting to reduce inventory level, control the amount of accounts
receivables and maintain healthy cash flow.

The Group’s two main lines of businesses are the electronic handheld
products business and the original design manufacturing (“ODM")
products business. In this financial year, the electronic handheld
products business contributed approximately 49% to the Group's
total revenue. As to the ODM business, the contribution of this
business segment in this financial year was approximately 51% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group will exploit every opportunity to
develop and manufacture products with reasonable gross profit
margin.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

BEIBRBDBE2WADH

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
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Original Design Manufacturing Products

51%

In analyzing the Group’s revenue by geographical areas, Asia is the
Group's key market, including Hong Kong (14.7%) and other Asian
markets (70.8%).

The Group believes that the worst time of the Asian economy is over.
The Group will exploit every opportunity to build new customers and
introduce products to the market in a timely and effective manner.
Compared to other markets, the China market is less affected by the
worldwide economic tsunami. The Group will put in more resources
to develop the China market. The focus on industrial application
products will be the growth strategy of the Group. Orders of such
products are less volatile than those in the consumer sector.

In conclusion, the business conditions of the Group in the financial
year of 2009-2010 remained difficult. Nevertheless, the Group’s
results in the second half of the financial year of 2009-2010 has
greatly improved. The Group believes that its strategy of making
investment in technology and the continuous enhancement of its
product quality and company reputation is the key to a sustainable
long term partnership with customers that in turn will drive the
business growth of the Group.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors (the “Board”) does not recommend any
payment of final dividend (2009: Nil) to the shareholders for the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support. | would
also like to extend my appreciation to all the staff for their dedicated
work and their contribution throughout the year.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th July, 2010
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the financial year is HK$663,261,352, which is 12%
lower than HK$752,605,040 of the previous year. During the year
under review, electronic handheld products business and original
design manufacturing (“ODM") business recorded revenues of
HK$327,229,263 and HK$336,032,089 respectively.

Operating loss for the year is HK$21,965,639 (2009:
HK$62,489,014). After charging finance costs of HK$24,450 (20009:
finance costs HK$8,423 and other expenses HK$1,969,999), loss
before tax is HK$21,990,089 (2009: HK$64,467,436). After taking
into account the taxation, loss for the year is HK$34,931,652 (2009:
HK$64,746,587).

On the statement of financial position side, inventories have increased
by HK$28,571,421 to HK$125,314,323 and trade receivables
decreased by HK$29,905,498 to HK$84,617,260.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$201,342,840 which was appropriately 11% lower
than HK$227,296,138 of the previous year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31st March, 2010, the cash and cash equivalents were
HK$201,342,840 in total, which was HK$25,953,298 or 11% lower
than those of twelve months ago. Total bank borrowings have
decreased from HK$15,428,422 to zero in the twelve months’ period.
The bank borrowing was denominated in Japanese Yen with fixed
interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31st March, 2010, the gearing ratio, defined as total bank

borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities was 0%. The interest
expenses is HK$24,450 during the period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2010, the contingent liabilities of the Group were
HK$4,907,618 (2009: HK$4,999,411).

2010 BE#HKREE Annual Report
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY
POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen, United States
dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury policy of the Group is to
manage significant currency exposure and minimize currency risk
whenever it may have material impact to the Group. During the
twelve months period, the Group manages its foreign exchange
exposure caused by the appreciation of Renminbi by entering into
hedging forward contracts. The Group does not engage in any
interest rate or currencies speculations.

ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY

Business Review

The SBU (strategic business unit) has experienced a decline in sales
turnover and gross profit in the financial year of 2009-2010 as
compared with the previous financial year.

The continual uncertainty of the global economy has significantly
weakened the consumer-spending sentiment. The sluggish consumer
demand has inevitably impacted the business performance of the
SBU. Although the SBU has carried out intensive sales promotion
programmes and adopted sales incentive scheme to stimulate
demand, the sales results were not up to our expectation. However,
these sales campaigns have helped the SBU clear most of its slow
moving inventory and improved its cash flow position to a healthy
level.

To cope with the uncertain business and market environment, the
SBU has streamlined its manpower and workflow, re-engineered the
product design, and tightened the operation expenses. Nevertheless,
there has been a continual upward pressure on material and labour
costs. As a result, the gross profit margin of the SBU was slightly
affected.

The business growth in South East Asia in the financial year of 2009—
2010 has slowed down but the SBU still could record a slight positive
growth in this market in spite of worldwide market downturn. This
damper on the upward pace of business growth has not been
released and the stability of the currencies of the South East Asian
countries is still a key issue to the growth momentum in this market.

Although the Korean Won has become more stable since the second
half of the financial year of 2009-2010, the currency depreciation
and economic turmoil has weakened the Korean market's constitution
and vitality.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



BEENWR 2N (B)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (continued)

ETEHH (B

R

—E-Z2CE--ELYXUREENER
WML AP - —FT——FT¥
BRFEZRASRMERBELREERN

= o
=l

/i

ABUKESHEBET M IR RHEENER . &
FEMBRRMBRS  BHOEFSENS
R RSBUTRE MNBFERERHER - B
BREFEERESERRESN

EREAMBRZTHABREE  RTIRBENER
RE  ASBUBEEZRVERDTSBER I
RNEENERE SRR  AREATED
SHEFE -

B ABUNEBERZERRDIERES
ENRZAHER  ABUBEBERKER
MBETEERBERBRSEFERNEHER
ER-BRTHEMSEN  RNBUBEETHE
TMEESREZEHE AR ABUTRERTE
MEBRERMBEKAES -

ABUBR-ZF-—F —F-——FHRFE
SREZEK BNFERSR BRITEHE
MR RASBUET —MREFEETFFHE
BRBNERER-

ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY (continued)

Outlook

The overall market situation will remain difficult in the first half of the
financial year of 2010-2011. The situation is expected to improve
slightly in the second half of the financial year of 2010-2011 after
the introduction of a new product line.

The SBU will strive to maintain a reasonable gross profit margin
through ceaselessly enhancing its operating efficiency, containing the
product development and material costs. The SBU will strengthen the
demand forecasting process in order to improve inventory
management and maintain a healthy cash position.

In view of the many uncertainties and the unstable economic
environment, the SBU will continue to monitor the markets closely
and adopt appropriate product and market strategies. The SBU will
work hard in expanding its customer base in different markets.

Moreover, the SBU will continue the development of innovative
products with unique features and higher gross profit margins. The
SBU wiill allocate more resources in developing low to medium end
products that are favoured by most customers during the present
weak economical seasons. Besides focusing on the consumer market,
the SBU will be looking for new business opportunities in the vertical
market that would allow the SBU to enjoy a more stable business
environment and also an enriched business profile.

The SBU will explore more business opportunities and introduce a
new product line with our strategic business partners in the financial
year of 2010-2011. The new product line is expected to start
bringing in sales revenues and contributing profit to the SBU in the
second half of the next financial year.

2010 BE#HKREE Annual Report
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ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING

Business Review

The business of the SBU has recovered and become more stable in
the second half of the financial year of 2009-2010. The solid
partnership with valued customers in Japan and the successful launch
of a series of new products both contributed to the business recovery.

In the category of electronic stationery, the award-winning “pocket
memo writer”, with a foldable keyboard and high resolution display,
continued to enjoy market success, resulting in the launch of a series
of new products in response to market demands. As for “TTO"
(Table-Top Ordering) devices, customers in major chain restaurants in
Japan had found their colour display and touch panel easy to use in
ordering food and beverages. This business area is poised for further
growth. In addition, table-top remote control devices for use in the
entertainment industry in Japan have also been well received. Orders
for these controllers have been stable.

The recovery is the results of the devoted efforts of the unified
research and development team of the SBU in Hong Kong,
Dongguan and Shenzhen, working together with the business unit in
Japan. This team, motivated to maximize customers’ satisfaction
through maintaining good communication with clients and applying
their profound engineering knowledge in turning customers’ original
concepts into real products, has become the unique competitive edge
and driving force of the SBU in pursuing ODM business opportunities
in Japan.

Outlook

The SBU will remain intensively focused on the continual expansion
of the ODM business in Japan and the eBook reader business in the
worldwide markets. A new category of electronic stationery based on
an entirely novel and unique concept is expected to create sensational
demands in the market when it is launched in the middle of the
financial year of 2010-2011 in Japan. Moreover, the SBU is breaking
new grounds in working with a major service provider in Japan on a
highly challenging ODM project. The launch date is also set in the
middle of the financial year of 2010-2011, and the project is
expected to generate substantial revenue for the SBU. Furthermore,
focusing on the B2B (“business to business”) market opportunities in
Japan, the SBU has also started working on a customer-commissioned
project for the development of a wireless handy terminal, with the
target launch date of the product set in the first quarter of the
financial year of 2011-2012.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING
(continued)

Outlook (continued)

The eBook reader business is another potential area of growth of the
SBU. Following the rapid rise of the eBook reader markets in the USA
last year, the SBU has started to get increased orders from its
customers in the USA and Europe. Instead of the conventional eBook
readers now on the market either using common paper display, or
being part of the multi-functional MID (Mobile Internet Device) type
of devices, the SBU is offering eBook readers that are comparatively
simple, inexpensive, but with high performance and fast speed, using
an exclusively-developed high contrast TFT (Thin Film Transistor)
display technology. Two such new unique eBook readers will be
launched in the coming financial year, and these eBook readers are
expected to gain substantial market share and form the basis of
further business growth of the SBU in the coming years.

PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS

Business Review

In the financial year of 2009-2010, the business of the SBU has
improved slightly. The revenue has increased as compared with the
financial year of 2008-2009, resulting in a smaller loss.

As for the POS PDA (Point-of-sale Personal Digital Assistant) business,
the SBU has increased its sales revenue through focusing on the
development of the European markets, securing new customers and
launching new products in the financial year of 2009-2010. As for
the ODM business, the quantity of the products delivered to existing
customers was higher than in the financial year of 2008-2009. In the
financial year of 2009-2010, the SBU has established new clientele
and developed new products. In addition, the SBU has conducted a
number of feasibility studies on new technologies and products in the
financial year of 2009-2010 in support of its search for new business
opportunities.

2010 BE#HKREE Annual Report
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PERSONAL COMMUNICATION PRODUCTS
(continued)

Outlook

In the financial year of 2010-2011, the SBU will continue to
strengthen the development of vertical markets and expand the ODM
business. The SBU will focus on the expansion of its client base and
on the improvement of the competitiveness of its products.

As for the POS PDA business, the SBU aims to increase its revenue by
strengthening its partnership with its European customers and by
developing the American markets. The SBU will also launch new
products to meet the customers’ needs. The SBU will also strive to
acquire new stable customers of ODM business this year, with a view
to achieving stable growth in business.

The SBU is facing the challenge of higher operating costs owing to
stringent supply in and the accompanying increase in price of parts
and components on one hand, and the increasing manufacturing
costs on the others. The SBU will strive to increase the product
competitiveness by continuing its efforts in containing the material
and production costs and in enhancing the product quality and
supporting services to customers.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31st March, 2010, the Group has on its payroll 244 (2009: 262)
employees in Hong Kong, 2,360 (2009: 2,437) employees in the
People’s Republic of China and 13 (2009: 11) employees in Japan,
representing a decrease of about 7%, a decrease of about 3% and
an increase of 18% respectively as compared with prior year. In
addition to salary remuneration and usual fringe benefits such as
annual leave, medical insurance and provident fund, the Group also
provides Share Incentive Plans for executive directors and senior staff.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial year, the
Group's management holds Business Planning Meetings with its
senior staff to review together the Group’s past performance, as well
as to discuss with them the Group’s future strategic plans, policies
and developments. After publication of the Group’s results
announcement, staff communication sessions are held to keep
employees abreast of the Group’s developments and also to facilitate
two-way dialogue between the management and all level of
employees. The management actively communicates with employees
by means of “GSL SMS” through intranet, staff newsletters and
emails to ensure free flow of information across different staff levels
and to promote information and experience sharing. All staff are
encouraged to express their views and feelings and to propose
suggestions on different aspects. Employee satisfaction surveys are
conducted regularly to help the senior management gauge various
concerns of the staff and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly.
A good promotion system is in place to identify the potential staff
and help employees prepare for their career prospects.
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EMPLOYEES RELATIONS (continued)

The Group has appointed a number of professional training
consultants to run workshops for improving mid-level management
executives’ problem solving skills, communication skills and team
spirit building technique. Other in-house training programmes have
also been organized to continuously develop the capabilities of all
levels of the staff. Moreover, employees are encouraged to take
outside programmes to acquire additional knowledge and upgrade
their skills. Staff may be nominated for attending selected training
schemes with full sponsorship. Employees who are interested in other
unselected courses may still apply for the full or partial subsidies
through the Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group’s concern for the environment begins with its own
operations. The Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong participated the
centralized automatic refuse collection system and lighting control
system. The Group encourages the adoption of recycled or
environmentally responsible materials as well as paper and toner
cartridges recycling. Besides, the Group requests any relevant parts or
materials delivered, provided and/or supplied by the suppliers shall
comply with and observe Directive of the European Parliament and of
the Council on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS), Directive of
the European Parliament and of the Council on waste electrical and
electronic equipment (WEEE), Directive of the European Parliament
and of the Council on registration, evaluation, authorisation and
restriction of chemicals (REACH) and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the ISO9001 Quality
Management System and ISO14001 Environmental Management
System have been combined since 2000. On-site surveillance
assessment is conducted regularly by independent assessors to ensure
compliance and continual improvement. Internal audit teams have
been organised to perform compliance audit on an on-going basis.
The Group has upgraded the environmental management system to
attain the new ISO14001:2004 standard.

As to care for the Community, the Group participate in “Lai See Day
2010" organized by The Salvation Army and we encourage
colleagues to donate Lai See packets to support the charity work of
the organization.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practices with a view to protecting the interests of all of
its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code") throughout the financial year ended 31st
March, 2010 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) with deviation from the first part of the first sentence
of the code provision E.1.2 of the Code.

Under the first sentence of the code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting and
arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the chairman of
such committees, another member of the committee or failing this
his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting. Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the
chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 4th September, 2009 due to personal
engagement. Dr. Tam has arranged the other members of the Board
and Remuneration Committee to attend the annual general meeting
and to be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code”) on terms no less exactly than the required
standard set out in the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors. In compliance with the recent
amendments to the requirements of the Model Code, the Company
has amended its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors accordingly. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
all directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31st March, 2010.
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THE BOARD

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises ten directors,
including seven executive directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Jp (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director), Mrs.
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr.
Fok Ting Yeung, James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel MH, Jp, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man,
Jason. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2010, Mr. Lo Chi
Chung, William resigned as an non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1st January, 2010. Save as disclosed
herein, there has been no change as to the composition of the Board.

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of regular
board meetings are served to all directors at least fourteen days
before the meetings to ensure that all directors are given the
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent out to all directors at least three days in advance to ensure that
all directors are given the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings. Draft minutes of board meetings
are circulated to all directors for comment within a reasonable time
prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2010, four board
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each director is
set out below:

HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended

HITES Executive Directors

BREZEATH+ (£FE) Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP (Chairman) 4/4
EBRER (FHAKE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4
EEEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
RAFE Kazuhiro Otani 4/4
54 Lee Koon Hung 4/4
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James 4/4
EREA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4
EHITES Non-executive Director

#ER Lo Chi Chung, William

(R=ZF—-ZFF—-A—B&D

(resigned with effect from 1st January, 2010) 2/3

BIYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

BRkHymegs AZH+ Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP 3/4
[ ENE R Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F#X Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
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THE BOARD (continued)

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
policies of the Group, reviewing and monitoring its financial
performance, including preparing and approving financial statements
and overseeing operational matters of the management, considering
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budget. Daily business operations and
administration functions are delegated to the management.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors have been appointed
with one of them has appropriate accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Board has received annual confirmation
of independence from the independent non-executive directors as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp and Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian is the
wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp. The relationship between Mr. Lee
Koon Hung and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith is husband and wife. Save
for these relationships, there are no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Currently, the Company has set up five committees including
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Executive Management Committee and Share Option
Committee. Each committee is delegated with various responsibilities
by the Board in assisting the Board in the discharge of its duties and
to administer particular aspects of the Group’s activities. Details of the
role and function of each committee are summarized below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively. The roles of
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly segregated and
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman’s principal
responsibility is to manage the Board and the Managing Director’s
principal responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. In
particular, the Chairman is responsible for the Group’s corporate
planning and financial management whereas the Managing Director
is responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies of the
Group's products.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive directors are
fixed for a specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996. The
Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.1.3 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
an executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of directors and senior
management of the Company. It schedules to meet at least once a
year for reviewing the remuneration of the executive directors and
senior management of the Company and assessing performance of
executive directors. In determining and approving the remuneration
of directors and senior management of the Company, the
Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement and
company and divisional profitability.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2010 for approving the salary
adjustment for executive directors and senior management of the

B -ZEWMEBEZ2EHBERNT : Company. The attendance of each member is set out below:
HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended
BEEATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 17”1
B &K Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 17
F#Y Wong Kon Man, Jason 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company has
adopted terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3
of the Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel mH, Jp (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok
Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason. Mr. Lo Chi Chung,
William resigned as the member of the Audit Committee of the
Company with effect from 1st January, 2010.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
providing an independent and professional advice on financial
reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget) and the sufficiency of
external and internal audits.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2010, the Audit
Committee has held four meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted, discuss and evaluate internal control
procedures, risk management and financial reporting matters. It also
ensures that the Group complies with all applicable laws and
regulations. The attendance of each member is as follows:

HEEB A
Number of
meetings attended

BkHymgs cTa+ Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, Jp 4/4
1Al Bl A%, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F® Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
#EEIR Lo Chi Chung, William

(R=B—FF—-F—-B&MF) (resigned with effect from 1st January, 2010) 2/3
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After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee will present a report to the Board which highlights any
significant issues discussed in the meeting for the Board's information
and consideration. To assist the Audit Committee to carry out its
duties, the Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions in
improving business operations and performing internal audit. Internal
audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established in 2001 to help
directors identify and assess business risks. Corresponding strategies
are formulated and risk management system is implemented to
prevent and manage market and operational risks.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established in 2005 with
written terms of reference to operate as a general management
committee under the authority of the Board. Currently, the Executive
Management Committee comprises seven executive directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman of the Executive Management
Committee), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung,
James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith.

SHARE OPTION COMMITTEE

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with written
terms of reference to deal with issues regarding any grant of share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. In any case, the
grant of the Company’s share options to any director or his associates
requires the approval of the Company’s independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Committee comprises two executive
directors, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman of the Share
Option Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the total remuneration in respect of audit
services and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditors
are HK$1,515,000 and HK$ 153,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s financial statements. The statement of the auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 33
to 34 of the annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control of the Group.
The system of internal control is designed to manage and eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee was
formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions in improving
business operations and performing internal audit. A comprehensive
policy and standard governing the process improvement and internal
audit scope and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit staff,
was promulgated in September 2006. Internal audit reports will be
directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically. After each Audit
Committee meeting, the Chairman of the Audit Committee will
address the significant internal audit findings for the Board’s
information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries which cover the
review of risk management functions, the Company’s material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls, the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board considered the internal
control system effective and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhancing investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investor community. Measures to
keep investors informed of the Group's latest developments
comprehensively and timely include posting of press release and
announcements on the Group’s website and e-mail news updates.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson jp, aged 46, is the Chairman of the
Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for the Group’s corporate planning and financial management. He
has been one of the members of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since November 1996. He graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Science and later
was awarded the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He received “The Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in September 1992 and was awarded as one of the “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997. He is a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong (Information Technology
Functional Constituency), the Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council, the Vice Chairman of PRD Council of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and a member of The Hong
Kong — European Union Business Co-operation Committee. He is
the younger brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing
Director of the Company and the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 48, is the Managing Director of
the Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies of the
Group’s products. He has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over twenty-five years
of experience in marketing electronic components and consumer
electronic products. He received “Advanced Technology Development
Award” of “Capital Magazine's Outstanding Information Technology
and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001. He is the elder
brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company
and the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 42, is an Executive Director of
the Company. She joined the Group in February 1992 and is
responsible for human resources management, administrative matters
and electronic publishing of the Group. She has been one of the
members of the Share Option Committee of the Company since
November 1996. She has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from
the University of Hong Kong and a Master's degree in Training and
Human Resource Management from the University of Leicester,
United Kingdom, and has over twenty years of experience in
management and administration. Mrs. Tam is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai
Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company and the sister-in-law
of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, the Managing Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 49, joined the Company as Executive
Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/ODM business in
the Strategic Product Division, corporate business planning and
corporate sourcing strategy of the Group. He is the Chief Executive
Officer and President of Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense, a subsidiary
of the Group in Japan. He graduated from the Kansai University of
Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign
Languages, and has been working for a Japanese electronics
company for fourteen years before he joined the Group. He has spent
the latter ten years in the Hong Kong office of this Japanese company
since 1987, being responsible for sales and marketing of electronic
components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 47, joined the Group in 1988 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April 1998. He is
responsible for the personal communication products business of the
Group. He has been one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company since April 2003. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science
from Asia International Open University and a Master of Science’s
degree in Engineering Business Management from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-six years of experience in
product development. He is the husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung,
Judith, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 61, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1999. He is responsible for the Group’s
strategic operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering
and a Master of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong, and a
Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the University of London. He has
forty years of experience in many areas, including academic research,
industrial research, production management, product development,
consulting and strategic business development. Before joining the
Group, he served Hong Kong Productivity Council for thirteen years
as Divisional Manager of Electronics Services Division, Branch Director
of Design and Automation Branch and finally as Deputy Executive
Director. He is a member of the Advisory Committee on Electronic
Engineering of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, the Advisory
Committee for the Knowledge Management Research Centre of
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Senior Vice President of the
Council of the Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of
Science and Technology and the Vice Chairman of the Manufacturing
Enterprise Integration and Innovation Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 43, joined the Group in 1989
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in June
2007. She is responsible for the electronic dictionary business in the
Electronic Dictionary Division of the Group. She graduated from the
City University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in Business
Management. She has twenty-one years of experience in marketing
& sales of consumer electronic products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee
Koon Hung, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP, aged 52, Member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference — National Committee,
Certified Financial Planner®, Registered Financial Consultant,
Chartered Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District Director of
American International Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited. He is
also the Hong Kong and Macau Chair of International Association of
Registered Financial Consultants. He was awarded the International
EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
joined the Company as Independent Non-executive Director in
January 1995 and has been one of the members of the Audit
Committee since March 1999. He has over twenty-eight years of
experience in insurance and received “The Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Award” in November 1994. He was the Chairman of The
Outstanding Young Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the President
of The Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong (1991), the President
of the General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong
(1995-1996), the Co-Chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance
Council (1996-1997) and the International Committee Chairman of
GAMA International (1997-1999). He is a Council Member of Kwai
Tsing District Council. He is a Council Member and a Co-Convenor of
Independent Non-executive Directors Committee of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Founding President of Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association. He also sits in a
number of non-governmental organizations and Government
committees as either chairman or committee member.

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 50, is the director of G2B
Company Limited. He joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director in January 1995. He has been the member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company
since November 1996 and March 1999 respectively. He has obtained
a Diploma in Journalism from the Shue Yan University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-seven years of experience in marketing
consumer electronic products.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 46, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee in September 2004. He has been a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since January 2005. He
graduated from The University of Hawaii with a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration majoring in Accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
fifteen years of experience in accounting and auditing. At present,
Mr. Wong is the Managing Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and an independent director of China Shen Zhou Mining &
Resources, Inc., a company listed on the American Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 72, is the Deputy Managing Director —
Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive experience in
manufacturing of electronic products such as personal computers and
personal digital assistants. Prior to joining the Group in July 1999, he
worked for a famous Japanese electronics company as a senior
management staff for thirty-eight years and has considerable overseas
working experience in United States, Korea and other Southeast
Asian countries.

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 52, is the Executive Director,
Marketing and Business Development of Group Sense PDA Limited
and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries of the Group. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from University of
East Asia. Prior to joining the Group in December 2003, he has more
than twenty years of experience in marketing and manufacturing of
consumer electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 49, is the General Manager of the
Group’s Strategic Product Division. He graduated from University of
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science in
Computer Science. He has over twenty-four years of experience in
the field of electronics and computer products. He joined the Group
in 1993.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial statements
respectively .

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2010 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
35.

No interim dividend was paid during the year and the Board does not
recommend any payment of final dividend to shareholders for the
year ended 31st March, 2010. The retention of the loss of the Group
as at 31st March, 2010 was HK$19,137,816.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st March, 2010:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 16% and 51% respectively of the
Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 27% and 62 % respectively, of the
Group’s total purchases (not including purchases of items which
are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital had any interest in the five largest
customers nor the five largest suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold improvement
HK$26,896, furniture, fixtures and equipment HK$1,056,988, plant
and machinery HK$4,641,774, toolings and moulds HK$2,685,469,
motor vehicles HK$573,400 and construction in progress
HK$10,876,066.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the Company did not have any reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$409,710,189,
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Non-executive director:

Lo Chi Chung, William (resigned with effect from 1st January, 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James, Ms. Luk Chui Yung,
Judith and Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of no
more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP, Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st March, 2010, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

FEEERROEE (FR)

Number of ordinary shares held (long position)

HE BT
[ N
EatE BARZ HE#Ez HoER [ER
EENH Nature Personal Family Other @ % of issued
Names of directors of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BERATHL MeE—KR=
Tam WaiHo, Samson JP Notes1&2 31,732,000 — 537,877,118 569,609,118 47.56
EEXE ME—R=
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas Notes1&2 34,732,000 — 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
BHEE F &F —
Tam MuiKa Wai, Vivian Note 1 2,300,000 — 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
RAME
Kazuhiro Otani 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 0.17
P
Lee KoonHung 1,676,000 — — 1,676,000 0.14
ERER
Luk ChuiYung, Judith 550,000 — — 550,000 0.05
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill
Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially owned by The
Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992 Trust in equal shares. The
Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP). The Thomas
1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen,
Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, being directors, are directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

2. Included above is the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned by Dr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The interests of the directors and their associates in the share options
granted by the Company are set out in the section “Share Options”
in the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2010, none of the directors
or their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
schemes are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the financial
year ended 31st March, 2010.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2010, the register of substantial shareholders kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company:

FREFEEBRR
RGOEE (FR) HE#T
Number of BAZEHDL

% of issued
share capital

ordinary shares held
(Long Position)

Earnmill Holdings Limited

DJE Investment S.A.

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

537,877,118 44 .91
(M5 —) (Note 1)
72,284,000 6.04
(¥ 3E =) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04
(H¥3E =) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04

(Bt &£ =) (Note 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” disclosed above.

2. DJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an investment manager.
DJE Investment S.A. was 81% controlled by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital
AG, which was in turn 68.5% controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl
EHRHARDT. Therefore, DJE Investment S.A., Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital
AG and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT were all interested or deemed
to be interested in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2010, the Company had not
been notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Company’s directors
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2010.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exactly than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have complied
with, the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the financial year ended 31st March, 2010.

2010 BE#HKREE Annual Report
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and
Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason. Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William resigned as
the member of the Audit Committee of the Company with effect
from 1st January, 2010.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held four meetings with
93.33% attendance to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discuss internal control and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31st March, 2010.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
6th July, 2010

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



18 M A% S EM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

BEE (BB BRATDERR
(EEREZEAZMALZBERLA)

AZEMT(UTHEBIRM) SERER
EISEHEEICEEE (B BRARMNE
BEEk HPEER-Z—ZF=/A=+—
HWEaRARBMEMRTE  URBIEZA
LEEENGFEEERER SEEREEX
MGEERERERNTESHEEMENLE
fth 55 BA BT EE ©

EERRVBBRZEL

MEBMBRELERREB QARG 2K
BRE RERBEERXFHBIIHRIENER
RoRREMBERT BRREEERFR
REBEQ TR HRRABEHN R
B LRV BRRIES RERKRL (R
WERRFRERSIL) BELRAEER
MEFTEE  RERERFEHEENSFHEE -

BB 2 B

BPANEXARBRERMNEZE L ENK
BREBRER UWEBRARELTE19815F
WIEERETERREREMNER - Ktz
o RRETEREMAZ - RABFEHR A
RMEABTAEMEMBALESHEESE-

EMERBEEBEHAMASEMNEBRE
EAETER ZEEUEREMBETER
Re YRIRATESR USEBRELSE
MBBREEFEEMERERRAL -

To the shareholders of
Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Group Sense
(International) Limited set out on pages 35 to 138, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
6 July 2010

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



e EHEWER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_Z-ZHF=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-FF —EEREF
2010 2009
MY EE FE T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
WA REVENUE 5 663,261 752,605
HE A Cost of sales (478,275) (580,993)
E F Gross profit 184,986 171,612
HW AR WS F5E Other income and gains, net 5 11,480 13,130
SHER D HEHRA Selling and distribution costs (50,945) (59,215)
THXH Administrative expenses (86,063) (101,604)
MEREELH Research and development expenses (79,961) (84,669)
Hihk H Other expenses — (1,970)
BhE AR Finance costs 7 (24) (8)
FEEHEEGEEBEIE Share of losses of jointly-controlled entities (1,463) (1,744)
BATE B LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (21,990) (64,468)
MEXH Income tax expense 10 (12,942) (279)
rEEFE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (34,932) (64,747)
H i 2wk s OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
WESBMNELZERLES  Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 940 5,139
AFEXHERARH TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR (33,992) (59,608)
LS 1S - Loss attributable to:
AATREREA Equity holders of the Company 11 (34,256) (64,673)
DEREEDS Minority interests (676) (74)
(34,932) (64,747)
B2 EEEARE: Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
RKATREZE A Equity holders of the Company (33,316) (59,554)
DERRER Minority interests (676) (54)
(33,992) (59,608)
EAREBR LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
BRERE AEML ORDINARY EQUITY
gRESR HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
HA GBL) Basic (HK cents) (2.9) (5.4)
#5E OB Diluted (HK cents) (2.9) (5.4)

BEREZHBERYBRRMEE 12

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE-—ZTFE=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2010

—E-FF —EEREF
2010 2009
MY EE FEx FET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME- -BMERKRE Property, plant and equipment 14 85,581 89,993
TETEEREE Prepaid lease payments 15 17,142 17,596
IE 7IE BY B2 R AR Deferred development costs 16 3,011 5,196
HEEZEFEEES Interests in jointly-controlled entities 18 13,122 9,607
B N\ TR Interests in associates 19 = —
HHERSE Available-for-sale investments 20 26,094 26,094
W —E5EZHRR Amount due from a joint-venture partner 21 — 1,680
REZS Long term deposits 22 7,556 2,108
FRBEELZE Total non-current assets 152,506 152,274
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 23 125,314 96,743
FEWE SR Trade receivables 24 84,617 114,523
BARE RER Prepayments, deposits and
H {th fE R BR FX other receivables 25 62,819 50,940
FEUNEGE & N B BRFX Amounts due from associates 19 2,833 3,738
BAFERABER Investments at fair value through
ZIRE profit or loss 26 40,654 40,890
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 27 — 596
HEeRBESEEER Cash and cash equivalents 28 201,343 227,296
REBEELEE Total current assets 517,580 534,726
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EBRNEZRARENEZE Trade and bills payables 29 83,750 78,256
HMEMERRETARG Other payables and accruals 30 54,012 39,440
P —HEIZSIERIRS  Amount due to a jointly-controlled entity 18 — 9%
FEFHE R Tax payable 37,692 24,799
fTEemI A Derivative financial instruments 27 35 395
M ERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 31 — 15,428
REBEEBZE Total current liabilities 175,489 158,414
RBEEZEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 342,091 376,312
EEFRE Net assets 494,597 528,586

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

R=B-BE=A=1-8

As at 31 March 2010

ZE-BF CZEEZNF
2010 2009
M &£ FERT FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
IR #E EQUITY
KRABREFEA Equity attributable to equity
PE A BR #E holders of the Company
E8ITRA Issued capital 33 119,766 119,766
R Reserves 35(a) 371,376 404,692
491,142 524,458
DERRER Minority interests 3,455 4,128
gy ik Total equity 494,597 528,586
EEEE LI aret BEREE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
BEF EF
Director Director

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_Z-ZEF=A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

ARAREBEAEMS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
2R R BERR EAEE EXR® ®REEF/ LERR
RA  RERc EEE* e BHREE e (RABR)* mE EE RELE
Retained
Share Share Capital Exchange profits/
Issued  premium option redemption Special fluctuation (accumulated Minority Total
capital  account*  reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserve* loss) * Total interests equity
LIk TEr FEx TE=R FTER TER TER FTEr TFTEr FEx  FEx
Note HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(H$E33)  (WiEE33)  (MiEE34) (Ht=E35()
(note 33)  (note33)  (note 34) (note 35(a))
RZZENEF At 1 April 2008 119,766 409,710 2,461 419 (60,819) 32,289 79,791 583,617 1,85 585,473
A—H
AEEZE Total comprehensive
EiBEE loss for the year — — — — — 5119 (64,673)  (59,554) (54)  (59,608)
— KB QT E  Capital contribution from
BEIE minority shareholders
of a subsidiary — — — — — — — — 2,326 2,326
LURHEZ {2 Equity-settled share option
BEFRBREZHE  arangements 34 — — 395 — — — — 395 — 395
R-ZZZNF At 31 March 2009 and
=ZA=+—HK at1April2009
—EThE
A—H 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 37,408 15,118 524,458 4,128 528,586
AEEE2@E Total comprehensive loss
ikt for the year — — — — — 940 (34,256)  (33,316) (676)  (33,992)
— KB QT Capital contribution from
REETE minority shareholders
of a subsidiary — — — — — — — — 3 3
R=ZZ—F&  At31March2010
=A=+—8 119,766 409,710 2,856 419 (60,819) 38,348 (19,138) 491,142 3,455 494,597

* HERBEREENRGEATBERRERZ2E  *
& % #371,376,0008 T (=2 & h &

404,692,000 7T) ©

statement of financial position.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$371,376,000 (2009: HK$404,692,000) in the consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-T-TE=ASt—ALFE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-Z2F ZEZThE
2010 2009
MY EE FEx FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBCHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BATE B Loss before tax (21,990) (64,468)
R Adjustments for:
BE KA Finance costs 7 24 8
EEHEESEEEIE Share of losses of jointly-controlled entities 1,463 1,744
RITFE WA Bank interest income 5 (2,026) (2,816)
BAFERAEBZR Interest income from investments
ZERERE WA at fair value through profit or loss 5 (2,676) (2,682)
AHEERE Dividend income from
BRE WA available-for-sale investments 5 (628) (824)
HEYE BMERKRE Loss/(gain) on disposal of items
HE HEYERKRMN) =2 of property, plant and equipment
B, (k) F5E (other than a leasehold property), net 6 559 (366)
BAFERAEBERZRZ Fair value losses on investments
BREZRNFE at fair value through profit
B8 R or loss, net 5 236 479
AFEEE (k) 7BE ©  Fairvalue losses/(gains), net:
TTEEMEE Derivative financial assets 5 — (3,974)
TEEmEes Derivative financial liabilities 5 97 2,517
e Depreciation 6 21,611 30,107
FENHEREZER Recognition of prepaid lease payments 6 454 454
I FIE [ 2% B A 8 Amortisation of deferred
development costs 6 2,947 4,289
ME - BERRE Impairment of items of property,
H BRE plant and equipment 6 — 1,362
FE Uk B & N B BR RX Impairment of amounts due
RN from associates 6 — 1,970
EWE ZERFRE  F5 Impairment of trade receivables, net 6 — 805
FERE Provision for inventories 6 9,819 8,132
RS 2EE Equity-settled share option expense
RIRE 6 — 395
9,890 (22,868)

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

—E-Z2F ZEZThE

2010 2009

MY EE FEx FET

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FE (Em, md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (38,390) 11,109

EWE S RFZEAD Decrease in trade receivables 29,906 31,422
EARE RekHEAM Increase in prepayments, deposits and

FE UK BR FXIE AN other receivables (10,106) (6,078)
FE U B 1 B BR X Decrease/(increase) in amounts due

W, () from associates 905 (5,453)
ENEZERANEN Increase/(decrease) in trade

ZEEM R and bills payables 5,494 (28,822)
Hih e IR R EST Increase/(decrease) in other payables

BEEM CRd) and accruals 14,572 (10,374)
B —HEEAEE (Decrease)/increase in an amount due to

BRAX OR2), 18 i a jointly-controlled entity (96) 96
TEeREEZRD Decrease in derivative financial assets 596 3,329
EeREEZRED Decrease in derivative financial liabilities (457) —
KEEBREE/(ER) Cash generated from/(used in) operations

ZHRE 12,314 (27,639)
28I IE Overseas taxes paid (49) (42)
REXBCBH]ERN Net cash flows from/(used in) operating

O ) Fa8 activities 12,265 (27,681)
REXBZBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
FE W A Interest received 2,026 2,816
BEAFERABRERZ Interest received from investments

BEZFMERA at fair value through profit or loss 2,676 2,682

AHEEREZREEWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 628 824
BAVE BERKZE Purchases of items of property, plant

HE and equipment 14 (19,860) (18,241)
HEME BMERZE Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

HEZFBRE plant and equipment 2,120 1,621
HIIE %E BE 8% A AR Additions to deferred development costs 16 (762) (3,626)
BRE—HREEZEHEE Investment in a jointly-controlled entity — (350)
EW—HEEH S Increase in an amount due from

BR SR8 0 a jointly-controlled entity (4,978) —
B —SBBHEREM  Increase in an amount due from

a joint-venture partner (93) (93)
EH®RE (&), F (Increase)/decrease in long term deposits (5,448) 78
REXK2BELREFHE  Netcash flows used in investing

activities (23,691) (14,289)

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE-2F-FF=A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

—2-85% "TThF

2010 2009
MY EE FEx FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MEXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
A& A Finance costs (24) (8)
HERITER New bank loans — 15,428
BEETER Repayment of bank loans (15,428) (2,594)
—MBATLEMEXE  Capital injection from a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary 3 2,326
BMEEB2BEE ORE) Net cash flows (used in)/from financing
WA EEE activities (15,449) 15,152
ReRBELEEEAR NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
WD FEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,875) (26,818)
EYMzRERMEEMEEEB  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 227,296 252,165
IEERBFAE T Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 922 1,949
FRZEEREESZEIER CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 201,343 227,296
BeRELZEER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
BEERDW CASH EQUIVALENTS 28
BeRIRTE Cash and bank balances 79,311 105,696
BARBLIR=ZHEAR Non-pledged time deposits with original
BB ERER maturity of less than three months
when acquired 122,032 121,600
RERE AR R & Cash and cash equivalents as stated
LGmEHERERIEES in the consolidated statement of financial
HehBELEHEEH position and consolidated statement of
cash flows 201,343 227,296
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE—ZFTFE=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2010

—g-%% —TTAF
2010 2009
MY EE FE T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M AR R Interests in subsidiaries 17 687,237 719,246
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEWHE A TR Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
FEARE -RehEM Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
P& U BR X 25 308 308
HERIBTHEES Cash and bank balances 28 197 188
REEEHEZE Total current assets 3,505 3,496
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EitaE Accruals 30 476 526
P BLFR Tax payable 780 780
REBAEEZE Total current liabilities 1,256 1,306
REBEEFRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,249 2,190
EERERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 689,486 721,436
kRBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
i ACEIERNGIE EN Due to subsidiaries 17 195,314 194,356
EEFE Net assets 494,172 527,080
Bz 4 EQUITY
2EITIRA Issued capital 33 119,766 119,766
& Reserves 35(b) 374,406 407,314
B RE Total equity 494,172 527,080
WEEWLAvat mEREE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EE EE
Director Director

m S (HBK) BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z-ZHF=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

2.1
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at 6th Floor,
Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of electronic handheld
products, primarily electronic dictionaries, personal
communication products, and manufacture of original design
manufacturing (“ODM") products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders

not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE—Z-ZEF=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

22 BWBBERRBE 2N E

REBRAEETBRRERNE RRH The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
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for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

— Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to
HKAS 18 Revenue —
Determining whether an entity
is acting as a principal or
as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded
Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

HKFRSs
(October 2008)**

* %k

Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May
2009).

The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations —
Plan to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 7, HKFRS 8, HKAS 18 amendment
and Improvements to HKFRSs, the adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements and there have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statements.

(@

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balance is now
required for level 3 fair value measurements, as well as
significant transfers between levels in the fair value
hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements
for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity management.
The fair value measurement disclosures are presented in
note 41 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by
the segments, the geographical areas in which the Group
operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are
the same as the business segments previously identified
under HKAS 14. These revised disclosures, including the
related revised comparative information, are shown in
note 4 to the financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive
income, with all items of income and expense recognised
in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense recognised directly in
equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group has elected to present one single
statement.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue
— Determining whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

Guidance has been added to the appendix (which
accompanies the standard) to determine whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent. The features
to consider are whether the Group (i) has the primary
responsibility for providing the goods or services, (ii) has
inventory risk, (iii) has the discretion to establish prices
and (iv) bears credit risk. The Group has assessed its
revenue arrangements against these criteria and
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all
arrangements. The amendment has had no impact on
the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first
Improvements to HKFRSs which sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Except for the amendments to
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to Sell the Controlling
Interest in a Subsidiary which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the Group
adopted all the amendments from 1 January 2009. While
the adoption of some of the amendments results in
changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant impact to the Group.
Details of the key amendments most applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: replaces
the term “net selling price” with “fair value less
costs to sell” and the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

In addition, items of property, plant and equipment
held for rental that are routinely sold in the
ordinary course of business after rental are
transferred to inventories when rental ceases and
they are held for sale.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e)  (continued)

o HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: when discounted
cash flows are used to estimate “fair value less
costs to sell”, additional disclosures (e.g., discount
rate and growth rate used) are required which are
consistent with the disclosures required when the
discounted cash flows are used to estimate “value
inuse”.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'
HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters”

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues®

HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
Items'

“ S (HBK) BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)
HK(FRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(FRIC)-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 5 Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
included in Improvements  Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

to HKFRSs issued in Operations — Plan to Sell the
October 2008 Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary'

HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the
(Revised in December Length of Lease Term in respect
2009) of Hong Kong Land Leases

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 and Improvements to HKFRSs 20710 which sets
out amendments and transition requirements for amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. For Improvements to HKFRSs 2009,
the amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS
8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010. For Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the amendments to
HKFRS 3 and transition requirements for amendments arising
as a result of HKAS 27 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010 while the amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 although there are separate transitional provisions for
each standard or interpretation.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report



B R EE ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

3 BB

Ifr D
iz

HAREMZER

B ¥R s 2R ()

O RZEEAFELA-HHZER

WM FEREER

PO RZE-ZRF-A-ARZKHE
M FEREER

P O RIER-ZF-_A-BIHZEKER
R FE R AR

f O RZE-ZTFLA-H"ZEH
RN EESHEER

° RIZE-——F—-—F—BZh2EH
BN FEEBRBEEN

6 R-E—=F—HA—HAz#%HA
B EEREEMR

REBERLEEHHTREETER
MBHRELERDBERASNEE
HEPfh o BRI ASKE R R I E 5 5 7]

REETEBMBREET KA
SAREENELEARPHMRRER
BEAFE-

TEGHBREE

By /8 2 &)

MELAREARAR JEEREEES
HUBREBERRMEELEBZDER
2B

MBLAR XGRS WRERRER
ARRBWER - ARARKERF
ZEBRRABEARESEAR-

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for the revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for the revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and losses
from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@)  asubsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture; or

(¢ an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital
and is in a position to exercise significant influence over
the joint venture.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

Jointly-controlled entities are joint ventures that are subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated reserves respectively. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is included as
part of the Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated reserves
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
interests in associates and is not individually tested for
impairment.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report



B R EE ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

24 TESFHHERME (B)

Bg

WREBEARARARESNEREEZ
BEEEBRSHRABHAEBERK
WL zEWBTENEE  URR
BEESAERECEERIREEZ

NP REZREZEHE-

WEELEZHBERGEMBRRERSD
WIREE  BRAOURATE  HERE
BABEMBTREBES R B
AEARAREZEFEESE AEAR
FeaMBARRKRAIAEKREEMF

IR/ —EHBUCHBAERE -

EEYEENBECRAERGHER
HE RMEEEHRBTREDHELIR
HERERER  AFHERE 2&F
MeXxEBR=A=1+—-BETEE
HENR RAENRAMNS X84
HFEBEcEESAEWERERDE
EREEFBEAH ZHRENESE
ZEREELABNRRAREELE
i FTwAEEzEMEEREER

BED IR ZEEMNZAEN -

HEDEBFHEBEEEZREE
AEMN (-EREELEEM) 2THE
CTEMEBEE -HREELEM (—AR
SELEEMN) 2T RESEERRE
B AERABEERE - MEBEIRE

EERETIRERMBERD -

HEEEBRREELEN (—HEREE
EEB) 2 — A KRBz #B0 E K
BEHER MEBHEZXBERZ
BHEEGNETHEXBRBB R AZ
EBcREERN - EUEBRTHEZ
FEDRBEEHEXRB 2HBEEER

FREBZEEELEBNUBNAE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate and a jointly-
controlled entity represent the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset, initially measured at
cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. In the case of associates and jointly-controlled entities,
goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than
as a separately identified asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (jii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2%

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fixtures 25%
and equipment

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Tooling and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year
end.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Research and development costs (continued)
Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any

impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the estimated commercial lives of the underlying
products of three years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the leasehold
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from a joint-venture
partner, associates and a jointly-controlled entity, quoted and
unquoted financial instruments and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement. Reassessment
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other operating
expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other operating expenses and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets

whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first

assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been

incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amount due to a jointly-controlled entity,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those

contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ji) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; and a
discounted cash flow analysis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  income from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered,;

(© interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 34 to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or loss
per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2
only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested by 1 April 2006 and to those granted on or
after 1 April 2006.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff retirement
scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees (including
certain directors), the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO
Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to
his/her interest in the Group's employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



5 %5 R MY 5 (8)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE=2F-BF=A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

24 TESTTHEBRE (8) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

E’E®EA (&)

Btz E ()
AEERTEEENBARZEER
SHER-BHAEHNTRFEREZHPRR
KEHE - UEMBLAEZRKEH
TR Z14% > @ %P RE K E 53
EH TR WA RIRIE P RBARE T
B2RA REMRERERHIR-

I

LB ERRTI LB T (BIAQF 2%
ERZHEY) 25 - AEERZT LT
BRAG2HEER M AZEATH
MBHRZEBDNAZNELEREM
AE-AEEERIRZNAERZA
TEXZABNREEEERANDEER
WERZAR UNBHEZEBEE
REfFE BRHEEHRACERBRESR
WEEEH - FTAEZ 8T ARER R © BASb
BELRATEZRERER A A
NERGzRAZERBE - IR
DFEFEZFERER  MAET
DNFPEZRZERKBE -

ETBIIMBAT LEEHEER
BENTZRERRBTUNER -
RB|EPRR WELXCEERER
BRECHERCERRERLAQNAZ
2HERW MUESEXEZWHERER
ZHNMSEERBRERBLT - TEL
CERZEREGFAREMEEKE KRR
RERKEHE -  HEBIEER R
BEhEIAEZERENEBEH
H2EREK DR E SRR -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 14% of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment property and prepaid
lease payment

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment test of items of property, plant and
equipment

Management estimates the recoverable amount of items
of property, plant and equipment when an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale

and recognises movements of their fair values in equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2010,
HK$10,000,000 impairment losses have been recognised
for available-for-sale investments (2009:
HK$10,000,000).

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based
on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis of making the allowance and its future results
would be affected.

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different from
the original provision, such difference would impact
profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs
Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the

accounting policy for research and development costs in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the electronic handheld products segment designs,
manufactures and sells a range of electronic handheld
products;

(b)  the ODM products segment designs, manufactures and
sells ODM products; and

(0 the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income, expenses, asset and liability items related to the
Group’s investment activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
dividend income and finance costs as well as head office
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in jointly-controlled entities,
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from associates
and a joint-venture partner, cash and cash equivalents and
unallocated head office assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amount due to a jointly-controlled
entity, interest-bearing bank borrowing, tax payable and
unallocated head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. 7EER (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
DHEBHEEREERSEZHENEE= Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
ENEEBTSEEEBEE- to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

£ R E

ETER YEEmM TEREM WmEE
BE-Z—ZH Electronic
=A=+-—H Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
HEE 31 March 2010 products products and others Total
FEx FExT FET FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7ERA Segment revenue
HEF Sales to external

HNREF customers 327,229 336,032 — 663,261
a4 Segment results (33,356) 7,482 3,345 (22,529)
BER - Reconciliation:

FE WA Interest income 2,026

BE KA Finance costs (24)

FE 1k + [2) 322 %1 Share of losses of

BEREE jointly-controlled
entities (1,463)
oAl ia Loss before tax (21,990)
THEE Segment assets 218,206 165,435 70,378 454,019
AR Reconciliation:

AOBEE Unallocated assets 216,067
BMEE Total assets 670,086
SHEER Segment liabilities 67,871 69,415 35 137,321
BAR - Reconciliation:

KXomMEE Unallocated liabilities 38,168
BaeF Total liabilities 175,489

“ S (HBK) BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. 7¥EHR (8) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

E R & Et

BEFER SEER 2 LERHM waE
BE_Z—Z5% Electronic
=A=+—H Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
I 31 March 2010 products products and others Total
FTER THER THERT FTER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ht5EEH: Other segment
information:
FE A+ =) 22 Share of losses of
EREE jointly-controlled
entities — — 1,463 1,463
E R E#H Depreciation and
amortisation 13,841 7,970 3,201 25,012
=R Capital expenditure 17,026 3,291 305 20,622*
HEWE Loss/(gain) on
B E R B disposal of items
BEHZER of property,
() > F5E plant and
equipment, net 650 (46) (45) 559
GFERE Provision for
inventories 5,419 4,400 — 9,819
EmREREG Product warranty
provision 738 — — 738
3t 5 #2 H Interests in jointly-
ERER controlled entities — — 13,122 13,122
* ERAETOEERIE BERSDE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and deferred development costs.
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. TEEHR (B)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

2r R4 ET
ETER SEER TGEREM HEE
BE-ZZhH Electronic
=B=+-—H Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
IEFE 31 March 2009 products products and others Total
FET FExT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DERA Segment revenue
HETIHIREFE  Sales to external
customers 459,972 292,633 — 752,605
DEEE Segment results (41,359) (27,685) 4,482 (64,562)
Eg Reconciliation:

F B Uk A Interest income 2,816

A& R A Finance costs @®)

FE AL 322 1 Share of losses of

BEREE jointly-controlled
entities (1,744)
H Atk 7 B Other unallocated
* H expenses (970)
BiRiEE Loss before tax (64,468)
THEE Segment assets 225,154 159,486 73,899 458,539
B Reconciliation:

RAOMEE Unallocated assets 228,461
BMEE Total assets 687,000
TEERE Segment liabilities 78,232 39,034 395 117,661
HER: Reconciliation:

AAOmMERE Unallocated liabilities 40,753
BweE Total liabilities 158414

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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4,

DEEH (&) OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
e R
BEFEM TEEM EREM HEE
BE-ZThE Electronic
=A=+—H Year ended handheld ODM Corporate
IEFE 31 March 2009 products products and others Total
FET FExT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hit5¥EEH :  Other segment
information:
FEAL [ 2 Share of losses of
EREE jointly-controlled
entities — — 1,744 1,744
ER#HE Depreciation and
amortisation 22,562 8,453 3,835 34,850
EXRREX Capital expenditure 16,547 4,585 — 21,132
KAOBEARB S Unallocated capital
expenditure 735
21,867*
HEYE - H|E  Gain on disposal of
RBHER 2 items of property,
Wi FEE plant and
equipment, net (203) (163) — (366)
FEUEE QA Impairment of
BRFORE amounts due
from associates — — 1,970 1,970
ME- -BER Impairment of items
R EE B R E of property, plant
and equipment 1,362 — — 1,362
EWE SR Impairment of trade
WA SRR receivables, net 805 — — 805
FE#RE Provision for inventories 6,932 1,200 — 8,132
EmRERE Product warranty
provision 800 — — 800
HEZH Interests in jointly-
EfER controlled entities — — 9,607 9,607
* ERABETASETINE BERSDHE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and deferred development costs.
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. TEEHR (B)

wEER Geographical information

(@A) XKREIREFZKA

(a) Revenue from external customers

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

—E-FF —EENEF

2010 2009

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

SN Japan 318,747 290,569

BB Hong Kong 97,706 107,751

=91 Taiwan 72,176 76,707

1k =M North America 46,593 32,184

M Vietnam 37,708 31,097

L Korea 36,229 142,404
FE (FBERIN Mainland China

(other than Hong Kong) 23,983 28,092

S —H A Asia — Others 4,668 8,931

Hith Others 25,451 34,870

663,261 752,605

BWAEMEREEF ML -

The revenue information above is based on the location

of the customers.

(b) *¢HBEE (b) Non-current assets
—E-2F CZEThE
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE(EBK) Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 109,580 104,898
&8 Hong Kong 16,398 20,744
Hith Others 434 538
126,412 126,180

FRBDEEERERBEEENR
i ERMIT AR

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

The non-current asset information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. DEEHR (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FEEXEFEHR Information about major customers
WARBEFEEZRE KEARNEFHW A Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to
10% L AT : 10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:
—E-2F
2010
g+ R ET
EfE® YEEM HEE
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FET THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=EFH Customer A — 98,024 98,024
EFEZ Customer B 67,374 — 67,374
Z2FRA Customer C — 55,696 55,696
2FT Customer D 33,832 — 33,832
—EENE
2009
EE R4 ET
ETER TEEM iz
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Total
FEx FExT FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=X EH Customer A — 49,086 49,086
BFCZ Customer B 72,342 — 72,342
Z2FRA Customer C — 91,531 91,531
2EFET Customer D 134,389 — 134,389

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report “
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BE-ZE-Z2F=A=+t—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

5 WA -Hitgr ARz - 5.

= H

WARERAEENEXE DAF
NEHEEmWBEREEFHAMLR

ERXZITHNNHER -

WA BB AR WS FEINOT :

NET

follows:

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as

—E-EF5 CZZEEhE
2010 2009
FERT F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 663,261 752,605
H gt A Other income
EAFERABRRERZ Interest income from investments at fair value
RERNBE WA through profit or loss 2,676 2,682
RITRE WA Bank interest income 2,026 2,816
PR 75 B Wg A Service fee income 1,684 2,790
AHEERERERA Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 628 824
Hib Others 4,799 2,674
11,813 11,786
Hitthzs B8 Other gains, net
DNFEWE Fair value gains/(losses), net:
(B18) » F5:
EAFETABER Investments at fair value through profit or loss
ZRE (236) (479)
TESREE Derivative financial assets — 3,974
fTEewmas Derivative financial liabilities (97) (2,517)
HEME BER Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
RIEEEE 2 W& and equipment — 366
(333) 1,344
11,480 13,130

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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BE-2F-FF=A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

BRI E A

AEBZHRHBRABEESNER(GTA)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

TH&E (crediting):
—E-EF ZZEEThF
2010 2009
M =E FERT FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EHEFEERAK Cost of inventories sold 468,456 572,861
e Depreciation 14 21,611 30,107
FEAEEREZER Recognition of prepaid lease payments 15 454 454
MEREELE: Research and development costs:
D CELERE KA Deferred development costs amortised 16 2,947 4,289
AREERX Current year expenditure 77,014 80,380
79,961 84,669
ERTHEEFLE Minimum lease payments under operating
HENRRBEEXH leases in respect of land and buildings 11,158 11,774
BE A & Auditors’ remuneration 1,515 1,500
EEGANBEX (B Employee benefit expense (including
EEMS (HEES)) - directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
FNREYR Wages and salaries and benefits in kind 172,824 199,094
URESZRZEL Equity-settled share option expense
IR H 34 — 395
EIRETEIHERX Pension scheme contributions 7,304 7,660
180,128 207,149
EHERE FH Foreign exchange differences, net (2,925) 546
WL ATBRFUMME  Impairment of amounts due
from associates 19 — 1,970
FEUNE S BRFUBME  SEE Impairment of trade receivables, net 24 — 805
M- -BERRZE Impairment of items of property,
1H B R E plant and equipment 14 — 1,362
HEYE MERHRME  Loss/gain) on disposal of
BEHZEEB (%) items of property, plant and equipment 559 (366)
FERE Provision for inventories 9,819 8,132
EmREERE Product warranty provision 738 800

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

7. RERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
LTAREREKDH : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
rE
Group
—E-BF ZEEBIEF
2010 2009
TER FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
RoFR2HEEZME Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowing
RITEEFRE wholly repayable within five years 24 8
8. EEM= 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
BRBEBHBARZAMER QA ER Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
FHLIHRATEHTRAD REEA Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of
TMEBIE 1R BEFHREENEEMNS The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
W and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
rE
Group
—E-Z2F ZEEhF
2010 2009
FTER FHERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Fees 480 512
Hih < : Other emoluments:
e ZUAREYHZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,608 10,750
HERRHHRE Performance related incentive payments — 20
BEEEARARERR Employee share option benefits — 126
R SRR Pension scheme contributions 360 360
10,968 11,256
11,448 11,768

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

8. EEM S (&) 8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
RBEFFE BETESEERBEOLR In prior years, certain directors were granted share options in
EEFRENBEREERFTAQIAE respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
SRR ESEEBTHNELRRE & scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
— S HFEEHR R RT3 2 note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
BEEIRENLAFEDIARELHBEE options, which had been recognised in profit or loss over the
W REBEERRNETEZAER B vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and had
EEHEE- been fully vested.

@ BIUFHITES (@) Independent non-executive directors
EREAFRAMBILIFEHATES The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
THESWIT : during the year were as follows:

—g-%% —ITAE

2010 2009

TER FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BkHlgsEns APat Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, Jp 128 128
A7) R A, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 128
B 5ve Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128
384 384

REAFRABOBILIEHITES There were no other emoluments payable to the
THEMME(CZZEZNE  |) - independent non-executive directors during the year

(2009: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-Z2F=A=t—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

8. EEM S (&) 8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
b) HITEER-FHTES (b)  Executive directors and a non-executive director
B R BRR EEBE B
we REYANE #H#zRe IREEN BE 13 Bt
Salaries, Performance
allowances related Equity-settled Pension
and benefits incentive  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind payments benefits contributions remuneration
THERT TER TER TERT TERT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-%F 2010
HITEE: Executive directors:
EREZxws+  TamWaiHo, Samson — 2,654 - — 60 2,714
BERZE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas — 2,618 — — 60 2,678
EREE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian — 557 — — 27 584
KAME Kazuhiro Otani — 1,703 — — 63 1,766
L Lee Koon Hung — 1,100 — — 54 1,154
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James — 978 — — 47 1,025
fEEA Luk Chui Yung, Judith — 998 — — 49 1,047
— 10,608 — — 360 10,968
FHTEE . Non-executive director:

EEH Lo Chi Chung, William* 9% — — — — 9%
96 10,608 — — 360 11,064

“EENE 2009

HITEE: Executive directors:
EEZATm+  Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp — 2,718 — — 60 2,778
ERR Tam Wai Tong, Thomas — 2,653 — — 60 2,713
ERE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian — 579 — — 27 606
KBEME Kazuhiro Otani — 1,598 — 36 63 1,697
B30 Lee Koon Hung — 1,145 — 36 54 1,235
EEH Fok Ting Yeung, James - 1,018 — 18 47 1,083
BERE Luk Chui Yung, Judith - 1,039 20 36 49 1,144
— 10,750 20 126 360 11,256
FHTEE:  Non-executive director:
EEE Lo Chi Chung, William* 128 — — — — 128
128 10,750 20 126 360 11,384
* R-ZZE-—ZF—-A—B &% * Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William resigned as a non-executive
BELEBEADNBFHTES director of the Company with effect from 1 January
7% o 2010.
RAEAER WEBSIT VA% There was no arrangement under which a director
EHEIDERETMAME (= waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
BEHE  HE)o year (2009: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-2F-FF=A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

9. EIERREFEER

REFALEBESHEESBENS (=
ZENF WE)ES HMEFHBES
BN EXHEs - AFEHRE— & (=
ZENF —B)REFHESEEN
FEHBUOT:

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2009: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the one
(2009: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the year
are as follows:

KE

Group
—E-FF ZZINF
2010 2009
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e RUAREYIGE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,097 1,183
EEELARRERERN Employee share option benefits — 20
BRI EIME R Pension scheme contributions 52 52
1,149 1,255

RBEFE —ERSHFFESES
CREABmAEEFAEHNRBERT
BEEARE E-SHBRARMHER
KM EMZHER - ZEBEARARE
MAFEDRELEHET  LER
BEHANCTREEARIRCZHNEE -

10. Fi1E X H

HRAEEAEBYEELEETMNESB
FEREBEN HIEBEHEBIER
BE(CEENF 8 HtEZE
BRERBRANBREDNIREAEB LK EEK
FECEES B tREREMBERAR

10.

In prior years, share options were granted to a non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which had been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and had been
fully vested in the prior year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Company did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2009: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the respective countries/jurisdictions in which the

T E o Group operates.
—E-FF ZZINF
2010 2009
FER FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

REE: Group:

BEFEREREH—FB  Underprovision in prior years — Hong Kong 12,748 —
AEE—HMtE Current — Elsewhere 194 279
REEBEHKRASE Total tax charged for the year 12,942 279
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

10. LI H (E)

BRARBAIBELUEARTARENEB
RABAERBEERRAEZBEX
HELERBEFE 2HBEXH (5
E) #iR - LR E AR (BUEERR)
HEEBRBRZHRNOT

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credits applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are
as follows:

REE Group
—E-%F ——
2010 2009
FE T FExT
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

AR Loss before tax (21,990) (64,468)
BOEEMBIHEZBIE  Tax at the statutory tax rate (3.827) 174 (11,055) 171
BEAFEHRERE Adjustments in respect of current tax

RAFEE of previous periods 12,748  (58.0) — —
HEEZEHEE Losses attributable to

FE{E &g jointly-controlled entities 241 1.1) 288 (0.4)
BEMB 2 WA Income not subject to tax (1,220) 5.5 (1,960) 3.0
TA B2 H Expenses not deductible for tax 390 (1.8) 4,232 (6.6)
HIEER M AR E  Tax losses not carried forward

UBRARRER 2 for offsetting future assessable

FERFENZEE profits, due to concession 21 (0.1) 1,968 (3.0)
BIAEBE A2 FIE Tax losses utilised from

Eia previous periods (958) 4.4 (486) 0.8
AR 2BIEE B Tax losses not recognised 5535 (25.2) 6,375 (9.9)
Hith Others 12 (0.0) 917 (1.4)
RAEEEBRHEGTE  Taxcharge at the

Z I8 Bk Group’s effective rate 12,942  (58.9) 279 (0.4)

RBE-FZTAF=A=+-81L

FE BEBVERIHRERD A
S8 E T B 2 a8 R 1999/2000F &
20042005 F R FEETHEETE -
HRBREBNEELE QA RETHIES
& 36 B 5 1999/2000 F £ 2003/2004 5
AR FEREHREERSH TG (R
BEHEFED AEBCEQHRKERERR
BEUEANESHIGREEZR RERK
BEECEERBN XEECEHH
2000/2001 & R Fi F £ 2 188,000 JT F
BHRIECR=BEZEREF=ZRA=+—H
IEFE RSB #{83E4,600,000% T 2

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated a tax audit on certain
group companies for the years of assessment from 1999/2000
to 2004/2005. As the IRD is still conducting the tax review on
these companies, it has issued protective profits tax assessments
to them for the years of assessment from 1999/2000 to
2003/2004 (the “Protective Assessments”). The Group has
lodged objections with the IRD against the protective profits tax
assessments. According to the holdover notice issued by the
IRD, the Group had paid profits tax of HK$188,000 for the year
of assessment 2000/2001 and purchased Tax Reserve
Certificates totalling HK$4,600,000 during the year ended 31
March 2006.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HEZ

F-EE=A=t-ALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

10.

1.

12

13.

BIE X H ()

HEREHTHEETEHEHTEHREZEF
HERRAUERNER2FEwWER-
APBEERE BERBBEERZ
EERER ZVEEEREABLER
BHREBRREABAAIRCEERR
B RESFLEBERNEHR
AEBEBREGAHBARATRAENAEEH
2004/2005 % £ 2005/2006 F & # F &
12,748,000 t 2 HIEEE  EBKER
EREZBRTREZREEIEES
WERRR o

ARAREREABGER

BE-_Z-ZEF=ZA=+—HL*#E
EXAQAARESEAELGZAER
BRE-ZCIAERL2ITTERERZ
/&5 832,908,008 T (Z B F A & :
46,207,00078 7t) (M &E35(0)) °

iR =
EEEFRARBE_S-T5=4
St-ALEFERNEARE (Z22

NEF ) -

RNEH
BiEER

BRREFAA
B8

BREXEE

ERERXEBDREARRQTA
BESFSEEAELAFEER
34,256,000 T(ZEZE N F:
64,673,000 ) R FRN S EHITR
3 2 hnfEF 9 %1,197,663,029 (=
ZENE 1 1,197,663,029) 3t &

—
QD
=

b)) BERZBREE
BE_Z—ZFR-_ZZTNE=
ﬁ_‘l‘ HIEFE- IZIK’D\EZ
BEERRBETEEISHEME
AZFYTHE REEEmMS
BEARSRELREE -

10.

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

These Protective Assessments mainly relate to a dispute over
the deductibility of certain expenses for tax assessment
purposes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, after
taking the professional advice from its tax adviser, the tax audit
is at its final stage and the final settlement is being discussed
with the IRD. Based on the latest discussion with the IRD, the
Group is expecting to arrive at a settlement and an additional
tax liability of HK$12,748,000 is provided by the Group for the
years of assessment from 2004/2005 to 2005/2006, and the
Protective Assessments will be released upon the settlement is
agreed with the IRD.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes a loss of
HK$32,908,000 (2009: HK$46,207,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

(@) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$34,256,000 (2009:
HK$64,673,000) and the weighted average of
1,197,663,029 (2009: 1,197,663,029) shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2010
and 2009 in respect of a dilution because the exercise
prices of the Company’s share options were higher than
the average market prices of the shares for both years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

14. % BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HELH HE- BER I&AR
REF NERE RERRHE e I# AE HRIR a%
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and Leasehold fixturesand  Plant and and Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  equipment machinery  moulds  vehicles in progress Total
FET TET FET TEr FTEx ThE=n THET FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000
“E-BF 31 March
ZB=t+-H 2010
RZZZNE At 1 April 2009:
A—R:
BA Cost 74,026 39,010 86,261 128,493 124,887 10,803 797 464,277
2iiE Accumulated depreciation  (22,222) (32967)  (76345)  (118,186) (114865)  (9,699) —  (374,84)
BEFE Net carrying amount 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
RZZENE At 1 April 2009, net of
A-B accumulated deprediation
EMBREZHTE  and impaiment
RHE 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
nE Additions — 27 1,057 4,642 2,685 573 10,876 19,860
XEE Depreciation provided during
FRITE the year (1,486) (4,038) (4,074) (5063)  (6,589) (361) —  (21611)
HeE Disposals — — (6) (1,918) (755) — — (2,679)
EE Transfers - 1,074 — - - — (1,074) —
EXEF Exchange realignment — 7 1 — — — — 18
RZE-E& At 31 March 2010, net of
ZA=1+-H8'  acumulated deprecation
CHBRETE  andimpaiment
RAE 50,318 3113 6,904 7,968 5,363 1,316 10,599 85,581
RZZ-Z2F At 31 March
ZRA=+-H: 200
BA Cost 73,990 38,165 84,455 129336 125,932 11,376 10599 473,853
SEITERAEE  Acumulated depreciation
and impairment (23,672) (35,052) (77,551)  (121,368) (120,569)  (10,060) —  (388272)
BEFE Net carrying amount 50,318 3113 6,904 7,968 5,363 1,316 10,599 85,581
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

14. P¥E BERSKE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
HETH HE- BEEK I&R
kETF NERE RERZE e I# nE HEEIE ik
Leasehold Furniture, Toolings
land and leasehold  fixturesand  Plantand and Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements  equipment  machinery moulds  vehicles in progress Total
TER TR FEx TEr FEr FEx TEr FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
—EENE 31 March 2009
=ZA=t-H
R-ZBENEF At 1 April 2008:
A-B:
A Cost 72,676 37,823 90,726 133,139 117913 10,702 424 463,403
Z2IE Accumulated depreciation  (19,026) (28,792) (78675  (120,836) (104,440 (8,835) —  (360,604)
BEFE Net carrying amount 53,650 9,031 12,051 12,303 13,473 1,867 424 102,799
RZZENE At 1 April 2008, net of
A-B accumulated depreciation
CHIBRETE  andimpaiment
K& 53,650 9,031 12,051 12,303 13,473 1,867 424 102,799
"B Additions — 511 2,376 5,575 8,685 — 1,094 18,241
rEE Deprediation provided during
HiRNE the year (1,489) (4,395) (4,534) (7,853)  (11,047) (789) — (30,107)
A Impairment (1,362) - — - - — - (1,362)
HeE Disposals — 23) (45) (1) (1,186) — — (1,255)
HE Transfers — 731 — — — — (731) —
EXEF Exchange realignment 1,005 188 68 283 97 26 10 1,677
RZZZNF At 31 March 2009, net of
=A=1+-HB>  accumulated deprecation
SMBETE  andimpaiment
RAE 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
R-ZEERE At 31 March 2009:
ZA=+-8:
BA Cost 74,026 39,010 86,261 128,493 124,887 10,803 797 464,277
SETERFE  Acumulated depreciation
and impairment (22,222) (32,967) (76,345)  (118,186)  (114,865) (9,699) —  (374,284)
REFAE Net carrying amount 51,804 6,043 9,916 10,307 10,022 1,104 797 89,993
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

14. ¥ BERRZE (8B) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RBERREAXEFHRHELT HEEF 2 The net book values of the Group's leasehold land and
BREFEESNMT : buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed as
follows:

—E-Z2F5 C—EZhE

2010 2009
FET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBZHEHRHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 8,857 9,138
R BEzhFHHEE Medium term leases in Mainland China 41,461 42,666
50,318 51,804
15. N EHERAE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

E

Group
—E-FF —EEREF
2010 2009
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MM A—HZERAEE Carrying amount at 1 April 18,055 18,073
RAFESHER (ko) Recognised during the year (note 6) (454) (454)
ELES Exchange realignment — 436
MR=ZA=1+—HZRMEE  Carrying amount at 31 March 17,601 18,055

FIAFRNRIE RER Current portion included in prepayments,

HitEWBEBRR Z RENZ D deposits and other receivables (459) (459)
FEREE D Non-current portion 17,142 17,596
HETHTNRFTE LU ERHEE The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and
A are situated in Mainland China.
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

16. iE 7 B9 & R A 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

rEE
Group
—E-%FF ZEThF
2010 2009
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ROUA—AB: At 1 April:
@S Cost 37,033 33,407
HFt#ERREE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (31,837) (27,548)
R FE Net carrying amount 5,196 5,859
REB—HZRA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation and
R #ENRE impairment, at 1 April 5,196 5,859
Bn— PR B Additions — internal development 762 3,626
FEBERE (HiTe) Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) (2,947) (4,289)
WR=BA=+—H At 31 March 3,011 5,196
W=RA=+—8: At 31 March:
2@ Cost 37,795 37,033
ZET R E Accumulated amortisation and impairment (34,784) (31,837)
BREmEEE Net carrying amount 3,011 5,196
17. B A A= 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
FNNES|
Company
—E-ZF ZEENF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLETERE  BEAE Unlisted investments, at cost 269,334 269,334
FEW BB~ T BR X Due from subsidiaries 767,237 767,246
1,036,571 1,036,580
A ORE! Less: Impairment? (346,334) (314,334)
690,237 722,246
B M B 2 T BR X (MF3E40) Due to subsidiaries (note 40) (195,314) (194,356)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

17. B QA= (&)

# HRAEEETHEARAFESZS
B 18 ¥ E ® Bk M {8269,334,000%
T (ZZFZ A & 269,334,000 7T )
% 767,237,000 T (= E F h F:
767,264,000 7t ) (K 0 BR & B &5 18
A ZETHLTRERIRFE R
AE R - E85432,000,000/8 T (ZBF
JLEE © 45,000,00058 75) Z BB R FE U
B AT RAPER -

MEBLRAEDZBEZBNT :

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

# Impairments were recognised for interests in subsidiaries and

amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying amount of
HK$269,334,000 (2009: HK$269,334,000) and
HK$767,237,000 (2009: HK$767,246,000) (before deducting
the impairment loss), respectively, because certain subsidiaries of
the Group have been making loss persistently. During the year,
an additional impairment of HK$32,000,000 (2009:
HK$45,000,000) was recognised on the amounts due from
subsidiaries.

The movement in the impairment of interests in subsidiaries is
as follows:

FNNE|

Company
—E-FF ZZTINF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIMA—H At 1 April 314,334 269,334
EEEER Impairment losses recognised 32,000 45,000
N=BA=+—H At 31 March 346,334 314,334

A BRERE I ARME B T EK B
DB Z A KB BORR - LG E R
BAREZEAREMRETR
FBERMBLARAE FTRIZBERS
BEATBHANAZFHERAR -

BRERT-_BAEREEZERKELQ
7] Bk 73,000,000 T (ZZE & N F:
3,000,000 T) B AR BRMREHR A
IR REREEEERE - ZNIE
ZEREEHEANFEREE EERE
MREMSEEN WBLARZEHRET
EEHREHRET-EAREE &
REERRKRATBETRE -

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses the
prospects and financial position of its subsidiaries, on an
individual basis, as to whether there is any indication of
impairment of its interests in subsidiaries or any impairment loss
previously recognised for subsidiaries in prior years may no
longer exist or may need to be adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$3,000,000
(2009: HK$3,000,000) which are repayable within twelve
months, the balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, the balances with subsidiaries are not repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period
except for the amounts aforementioned and are therefore
shown in the statement of financial position as non-current.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HE-S-FF=A=+-AILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

17. B X R RERE (&)

FTEMBARZHBUT :

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MR BRITZERE AR LR E
=L AR = IR A B ZEDH TEXK
Nominal value
Place of incorporation/ of issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
HE LEE3
Direct Indirect
EERNMREXARALT e 10078 7 — 100 REER
Concept Technology Industries HongKong HK$100 Investmentholding
Limited
Favourable Outcome Limited* RBELZ#EE EY — 100 REZR
British Virgin Islands Us$1 Investmentholding
("BVI")
RERTZSNEFERART" HEARANE 45,000,00038 7 — 100 HERHEETER
Global Asia High-tech Electronics (THED,/+TE HK$45,000,000 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd."”" The People’s Republic of trading of electronic
China(The “PRC")/ products
Mainland China
Group Sense (China) Limited* KERLHEE 157 100 — BEER
BVI Us$1 Investmentholding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited*  RBEZHEE, /T E 10% 7T — 100 #BEME
BVI/Mainland China Us$10 Property holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited* KERELHEE 3,000% 7T 100 — BEER
BVI US$3,000 Investmentholding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited* RBEZHEE EY 100 — REEZR
BVI Us$1 Investmentholding
BEEWHHERAA B 100% 7T 100 — REER
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited* Samoa US$100 Investmentholding
EEERNH 5E EBR — 100 #®iE - FFK
Group Sense Limited HongKong 1,0007C HEEFEM
EREEFERE Manufacture, designand
ELERD trading of electronic
200,00058 7t? products
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferredshares o
HK$200,000
Group Sense Manufactory HERLEE TE 1£2% — 100 BREEFEMR
Company Limited BVI/Mainland China US$1 NTRE
Provision of
subcontracting
services for electronic
products
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BE-Z-Z2F=A=t—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

17. B A = (8) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FTEMBARZHBUT : ()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

HEmRL BRTLERE KR T e IR
721 AR A it B = fif B A T B ZED TEER
Nominal value
Place of incorporation/ of issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
B F:3
Direct Indirect
BEHERRDNF e 28T — 100 REER
Group Sense Manufactory HongKong HK$2 Investmentholding
CompanyLimited
BEBBNRARLT e 28T — 8BS RITRBEESFERM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited HongKong HK$2 Designand trading of
electronic products
EEPDAZRAERA R HEHES EBER 98.95 — REZR
Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited Cayman/slands 2,115,837% 7t Investmentholding
ABBER
17,182% 7T
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
preferred shares
US$17,182
BEELERARAH e 10038 7T — 8BS RIRBEESFER
Group Sense PDA Limited HongKong HK$100 Design and trading of
electronic products
REMNE (BB BRLAE BE 10038 7T — 100 REER
Group Sense Software Technology HongKong HK$100 Investmentholding
(Hong Kong)Limited
HRA e JINTEIAF B 60,000,000 A & — 100 REFRHEEETER
KabushikiKaisha Group Sense* Japan JPY60,000,000 Designand trading of
electronic products
Supreme Style Technology REBELZ#ES 100E 7T — 100 REZR
Limited* BVI US$100 Investmentholding
BRFARABBRMA R FEL/HE A K #50,000,000 — 70 RIARBE
BRAF ThePRC/ RMB50,000,000 ETERREM
Mainland China Designand trading of
electronic products
andsoftware
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HEZ

F-EE=A=t-ALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

17.

18. 2

M A R EE ()
EEHBARZHENT (@)

M EZHEQF-

2 EERDALEMERIKREREESR
MALBMEARRAGZESHLE
FARRAEINRAELREZE
M REEETEERSETADIR-

B) WHERIzPIEELE-

* REERBZKEMEBASA MR
KERTENE BB R S E& o

FREBINEERAHAEBZAEE
XBEEEARFESAEARLFTEEBEEF
BE2ERzHBAR - EERE =i
HUMBARZHBEEERERBR
T e

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Notes:
(1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(2)  The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(3)  Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

5 4 ) e A % 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
rE
Group
—E-FF ZZINF
2010 2009
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EhEEFE Share of net assets 1,464 2,927
WiEmE Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
8,144 9,607
W —HEIEHE R Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 4,978 —
13,122 9,607

R -—HEEZEFHERERERIDEENL
ﬁ?’*%J;ﬁ—%ﬁﬁﬂP AEER - RER
BETERB -EERAH HEEHE

BB ITEEREHARET =M@
BREZE BRHBEMRRIRAIHBFE
E) o

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity included in
interests in jointly-controlled entities is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors, the balance with the jointly-controlled entity is not
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and is therefore shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position as non-current.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

18. AR EHERER (&)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

R-ZBEAFZA=+—-B B —
HEEHEREKRN60008TEE
RAEERDESS  HEEF 22

At 31 March 2009, the amount due to a jointly-controlled
entity of HK$96,000, included in the Group’s current liabilities,
was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of

REB BRI -

HEZFERZFBUT

repayment.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

FEERT  EMRY/ A}
1 RHFE SR ERER RRKE P EEER
Particulars  Place of Percentage of
of issued  incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  registration interest power sharing Principal activities
HENEARDE 7000008  EHE 35 35 35 B RHRBE
Neoplatec Technology HK$700,000  HongKong BEARITHEEER
Company Limited Manufacture, design
andtrading of
in-mould technology
related products
EENBERR AR#5401550  HE 19.78 20 1978 RERHESTER
ARAA(EEHEZ) RMB5,401,550  ThePRC B
Chongging New Standard Manufacture and trading
Medical Equipment of electronic medical
Co., Ltd.("Chongging appliances
New Standard”)
Lt HEESERESAAARBE The above interests in jointly-controlled entities are indirectly

R

held by the Company.

EENEVBRRZMERFEENT =
A=t-—HAFH#B -AEEZYH
BRODBEBEZABEZHERR -8 —
AE=A=1t-HHMBZEXXRG#E

The financial statements of Chongging New Standard have the
financial year end of 31 December. The Group’s financial
statements are adjusted for the material transactions of this
jointly-controlled entity between 1 January and 31 March.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

18. LG4 BB EL (8) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
TREHEPAZAER LB IZS S The following table illustrates the summarised financial
ERBE information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

—E-8F C—TINF

2010 2009
FER FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEREEHEECEE Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets
EE&E: and liabilities:
RBEE Current assets 1,268 20,282
FREBEE Non-current assets 1,460 871
RBaE Current liabilities (1,264) (18,226)
EEFE Net assets 1,464 2,927
B LEIRGIEE %4 Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results:
'ON Revenue 354 279
HAebug A Other income 153 3
507 282
X B Total expenses (1,970) (2,026)
BEEE Loss after tax (1,463) (1,744)

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

19. BBE N TR

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rE

Group
—E-FF —EENEF
2010 2009
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBhEEFE Share of net assets — _
FEUW B & N B BR R Amounts due from associates 12,168 13,073
B ORE" Less: Impairment” (9,335) (9,335)
2,833 3,738

FE U B4 Y B BR 502,833,000 T (=&
FHE 1 3,738,00058 7T) D BEIERAE
BRBEED AEER  REREEFE

E

#

ym p

B

HREEAEEBT 2BE N RSE
B EE > WME R IRMEE12,168,000
BT (RNBREEEBEA(ZZZEA
£ :13,073,00058 7t) 2 FEWEEE R 7
BRFFERRE -

FEWEE XA RRBERE2LBN

The amounts due from associates of HK$2,833,000 (2009:
HK$3,738,000), included in the Group’s current assets, are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

An impairment was recognised for the amounts due from
associates with a carrying amount of HK$12,168,000 (before
deducting the impairment loss) (2009: HK$13,073,000) because
these associates of the Group have been making loss
persistently.

The movements in the provision for impairment of amounts

T due from associates are as follows:

rE

Group
—E-2F ZZEEhF
2010 2009
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
READ At the beginning of year 9,335 4,320
REMENERREH D™  Redassified from other payables™ — 3,200
EERREEE (H5E6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) — 1,970
it B Write-off — (155)
REK At the end of year 9,335 9,335

#

RBEFEAEEER —HELAAH
£3,999,000/8 T 2 SR TE L FHIRHIE
R WEWEEE A - H 3,200,000
BLTZERCIERBERNREMEME
RFAER - BE-_ZTAF=ZA=1+
—HLEFER AEBCEZBEE D
F{E B C B FH =2 3,950,0005% JT iR 1T 1%
FA %A 30 AR FE i 7% 5%.3,200,00058 T 2
BERHEHMESRIAEFSIBZEENR
BN B RFUREEE -

##

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

The Group provided a bank guarantee of HK$3,999,000 to an
associate for an overdraft facility which was fully utilised in prior
years, of which HK$3,200,000 was provided for and was
included in other payables in prior years. During the year ended
31 March 2009, the Group settled the utilised banking facility of
HK$3,950,000 on behalf of the associate, and accordingly, the
provision of HK$3,200,000 was reclassified from other payables
to impairment losses on amounts due from associates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

19. & N T ER (8) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

FTEBREQNTZHBUT

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

e ®T MR/ rEBELRE
=x RS M B EEZzEIE ETETEK
Percentage of
ownership
Particulars Place of interest
of issued incorporation/ attributable to
Name shares held registration the Group Principal activities
ERBEBEEABRAR 3,500 &H#E 35 ITHRAEEREE
EIDE HK$3,500 Hong Kong Manufacture and
ACME Tech Precision Moulds trading of moulds
Limited ("ACME")*
BMNEFREERAA 45,0008 T & 45 MmETE
(T3 M4+ ) HK$45,000 Hong Kong Inactive
Sinocard Technology Limited
("Sinocard")

* ORRERBZKENMERASA MR
KERTENER B R S E& o

FREVNESRAUAEEAZAEE
EBEEAYERARETEBREEF
BFrEBor2BHELNRA - ESRE IR
HEMBEQAANFEBEEERENB
RIAE-

EHBENRNMAEE 2 HBHRE —
BB EEBE=ZA=1+—H-

AEERECBHERARE  HER
ARA-—2EMBRAFEZRER
I o

HREGCHEREQNAFEBBAE
BABELATER HAEECKLE
BREEGERIEREMNEFEEB - K
SERAFER BT 2 KR E LB
ENTEED R A05138B T (ZEE
L5 340,405 Jt) ’6,004,4227% T
—EEENFE :15909,2848 ) °

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The financial statements of the above associates are
coterminous with those of the Group, which have financial
year ending 31 March.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of ACME and Sinocard because the share of losses of
these associates exceeded the Group’s interests in the
associates. The Group'’s unrecognised share of losses of these
associates for the current year and cumulatively amounted to
HK$95,138 (2009: HK$340,405) and HK$6,004,422 (2009:
HK$5,909,284), respectively.

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report
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19. Bt N T ERE (8)

TRAFABNRAEEERE 2 NEBEE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

SN BEREE information of the Group’s associates extracted from their
management accounts:
—E-FEF —EENF
2010 2009
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets 6,358 5,965
=R Liabilities (20,188) (19,649)
A Revenue 5,936 5,060
KEEEE Loss for the year (146) (809)
20. IHHERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
EE
Group
—E-EHF —EENF
2010 2009
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BERAZELETRAKRE Unlisted equity investments, at cost 36,094 36,094
W RE” Less: Impairment" (10,000) (10,000)

26,094 26,094

# HRBRERBXE REHREEE
32,055,000 7t (5 31 BRORS B &5 18 A7)
(ZZZ A 5 132,055,000 5T) 2 —
FLETRERIME - REFERRE
WEEBH (ZZETAE &)

tRBREREFRLTREABERE
HEEEERIHEERE -

21. B —EERBHERM

R-ZEZEAF=ZA=+—HEK—%
ERHRFLEIER  M6%FRER
ERER-ZZ-ZF+ATHEABE-

21.

An impairment was recognised for an unlisted investment with
a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) (2009: HK$32,055,000) due to the non-
performance of the investment. There was no movement in the
impairment during the year (2009: Nil).

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
investments.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT-VENTURE
PARTNER

At 31 March 2009, the amount due from a joint-venture
partner is unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 6% per annum
and would be repayable on 14 October 2010.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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22. RS

EEVNEBYARE BESHABEZ
ERHEERMBPALERLRCHE -

22. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets relate to deposits for which there was no recent history
of default.

23. 78 23. INVENTORIES

&

Group
—E-FF CZZZThE
2010 2009
FHT FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEar Raw materials 77,416 58,979
T8 @ Work in progress 22,724 14,714
E Ly Finished goods 25,174 23,050
125,314 96,743

24. EWWE 5 BRM 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEH

Group
=t
2010 2009
FHERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EWE SRR Trade receivables 100,356 131,592
AR Impairment (15,739) (17,069)
84,617 114,523

REBREEFCESFTENEER
RET - FRB-—MRNFOENX -
BEEFEERAGEHEE -A5H
BREFHERES ZBRFRET
BREGSTAEEFERREEZ&RE-
EREEEEHENON ZRE &
WEZHRATAFNE -FERBRER
HEESHMEL2 -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. Trade receivables are interest-free. Please
refer to note 42 for details of credit risk management.

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

24. EIRE SR (B) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

AT HEWESRFUASREE AR
BEFEAEMRBENRZRED
#r

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates and net of
provisions, is as follows:

KE

Group
—E-EF ZZEZThE
2010 2009
FERT FET
HK$"000 HK$'000
0E60K 0-60 days 66,633 106,820
612 90K 61-90 days 7,347 108
HBiBo0 X Over 90 days 10,637 7,595
84,617 114,523

BWEZRFBRERBE2EZBUOT :

The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

rE

Group
—E-BF ZE2EhF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REA At the beginning of year 17,069 16,264

CEREEERE  FHE Impairment losses recognised, net (note 6)

(Mt=E6) — 805
AU EmMeE < 8R&  Amount written off as uncollectible (1,330) —
REK At the end of year 15,739 17,069

+ i pE Uk B 5 BR BORE B 1B B 1S E B
KRB FE R E 5 BR §X15,739,0005% T
(ZZE TN F:17,069,00058 t) HER
M 8 £22,378,0008 T (ZEZ A F :
25,208,000 7t) © 1@ Bl 42 5 (B FE W B
SRNEEBXAREHREER EH
EUREEEERERZ — 2140 &
EEYERLEERIEETMIKTF R
REMEELE -

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$15,739,000 (2009: HK$17,069,000) with a
gross carrying amount of HK$22,378,000 (2009:
HK$25,208,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
relate to customers that were in default or delinquent in
payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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24,

25.

FEWE Z &R (&)

TEERNRLBRSETHEZIER
BERAZIREDOMAOT

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

rE

Group
—E-EF ZZEZThE
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R iE HA = R (B Neither past due nor impaired 64,280 69,975
BE — =W {E A 1 to 2 months past due 2,323 33,951
BHMZE=MHA 2 to 3 months past due 7,347 108
BEAREE =18 A Over 3 months past due 4,028 2,350
77,978 106,384

RIB RIS R E 2 FEWR KB R K
HOBNFFEMLHLEERCE -

CHAMEERBECERERBENAE
EZECHERIFNEF - BEBAR
% AATFEBRE HRNEEEET

BEANE IRBERDITZEHEK
Bl - BE AR I F A RE LR ERE -
REBWER M EERFHEMER

mEEMEEERS -

ANRE - BERHE m@
WIRR—AREB R A LQF

ZEEBARBHETERE - LES

mﬂﬁé%fi{‘ AT H I R 3 T RC 8% 2 FE IR
I °

25.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP AND
COMPANY

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report



B R E ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE—Z-ZEF=A=1+—HLFE
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26. EAFERABERRZ 26. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
R 3 THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
rEE
Group
—E-Z2F5 C—EZEZhE
2010 2009
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHESEBS B AFE  Unlisted debt securities, at fair value
—ESFHNEEFFEE — Debentures with fixed interest rates from
55%Z&75% 2Bk 5.5% to 7.5% per annum with
A= —FF maturity dates from 8 November 2010
+—ANRAZE to 28 April 2014
—E-NFEWEA
—+tNALk 40,654 40,890

EXR-ZZ2-ZFR_-ZFZTANF=A
S+ -BRZFLTESEBSFCRERE
RAHHE-

BAVERABRRZREZATE
URBERREXERBAERKZIZE
AREEE -

RZE-—FTFE=A=+—-—H F&H
H h BE T {8 16,025,000 T & A F E
FAEBZR2RE(ZEZENE:
16,725,0007& Jt) B #IK #F > LLENS A
S@E—RITERAZE FFEE31) -

The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March 2010 and 2009
were classified as held for trading.

The fair values of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are determined based on the quoted bid prices at the close of
business at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s investments at fair value through
profit or loss with the carrying amount of HK$16,025,000
(2009: HK$16,725,000) were pledged as security for the
Group’s banking facilities (note 31).

27. (TEE€R I A 27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
rEH
Group
i s
2010 2009

BE =N gE afE

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

FHERT FHERT FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EHIESY Forward currency contracts — 35 596 395

EHRNMESH2REEEA QN FEMR
Be LS ROTEEMTIAZRS )
BUKIERITAER AT RIBAERITAIL ©

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values. The above transactions involving
derivative financial instruments are transacted with Wing Lung
Bank Limited and China Merchant Bank Co., Ltd.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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27.

28.

TTEERIA (&)

AEBFTLLLREBIEEH UE
BHEZRBK HEXTTFEHE PR
E2GE e A EEBSTETA
ZAFEZEEIEI7,0008BT(ZEE
FLE T 1,457,000 ) 0 ©EFAR
FRZBHNA

27.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The Group has entered into the above forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair
value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to a loss
of HK$97,000 (2009: a gain of HK$1,457,000) were charged
to profit or loss during the year.

HEREREESZEEEH 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
wE YN
Group Company
—E-2F Z—ETHhE Z—F-FTF ZEBENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
THET FHERT THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
He RIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 79,311 105,696 197 188
EHER Time deposits 122,032 121,600 — —
WERBESEE  Cash and cash equivalents
BB 201,343 227,296 197 188

RBEHR AEBUARBTA
REDFEZREERESEEE
A31371000%8 T (= T & h &
77,890,000 t) c ARBRBEHR
BAEEMEYE AWM REFEINMNEE
BiRpIREE EERVTEEERTE
AEEBEEZREREUREELE
BHRITBARELBRBHEMEY -

ROTBESDRBERTEARITERF
RZZBHRAEREFE - 8 FAREH
MEREFR BEHREHER2HR
TR NF-RERZEAFTE ARE
B2EBMEMERARBEAE R
TERERRARFERERBLH
RS RACHIRAT

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$31,371,000 (2009: HK$77,890,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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20. ENEBEREFREMNZHE  29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

LTAENESEREREENEZEE UA An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
HABATEMRBESRRZERERD of the reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as
e follows:
rE
Group
—E-2F ZEZNF
2010 2009
FERT FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0E60K 0-60 days 79,626 73,351
61 290K 61-90 days 1,585 1,717
HBIBIOK Over 90 days 2,539 3,188
83,750 78,256
ENEZERFEBEEXZGSANE B—R The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
REOKREE o settled on 60-day terms.

30. HttE( R R ESTE®E  30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

HENRRRESFAELETE Other payables and accruals are interest-free and repayable on
BEREREER- demand.
31. fHERITEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING
—E-EF —EENF
2010 2009
BEEAI= BRA =
(%) THERT (%) FHET
Effective Effective
interest interest
rEH Group rate (%) HK$°000 rate (%) HK$'000
i Current
$RITHEE  EIKHF  Bank borrowing, unsecured
WER—FA and repayable within
EE one year — — 25 15,428

112 S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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32. IEIE

. MERITEE (&)

B

(@ RIMEER A 216,000,000 5T (=
ggni 16,000,000 7t ) 2 A& &
ERRERKRTFHA(ZZTLEF:
/) o 2&%!211'@&? UAREE
4 $£16,0250008 T(Z 2 FE A& :
16,725,000 7t) A A FETLABREK
ZETREERKIT (H5E26) -

b)) RBEEHR AQARAEEHEHT
BT (ZEZ N 15428,000% T)
ZRITERRBEHER -

© MN-ZZEBhE=ZB=1+-—-H &~&£H
ZRITEERAE-

AZERNF=ZR=1+—R8 XEBEMNIRIT
BENKRAERZEAFEAS RZZFZR

F=A=1+—HEEZAFEMATARE
EANERFERRHRRASRERE -

BiE

ZK%IEWM%%?WHUEA%;‘%EE
#7182,812,0008 T (= & & h F:
173,374,000 7T ) E’J%Rﬁ%;ﬁﬁév iG]
HERBEEEEEBEEBEENQ R
FARREZRBE EZN  REBTRAE
EA17193,18B Tt (Z 2 F 1 &
9,865,568 ) MR BB > W AR
R—ZHFRIXERRKERBEH
EhHEBAREEE —BRKEAERA
HERBEMNTZUEBERHEHBEA
AUBAZBEEE NRLEEER

mE  LARERELERBEE -

31.

32.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING
(continued)

Notes:

(@  The Group's revolving loan amounted to HK$16,000,000 (2009:
HK$16,000,000), none of which (2009: Nil) was utilised as at
the end of the reporting period. The Group's revolving loan are
secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s investments at
fair value through profit or loss of HK$16,025,000 (2009:
HK$16,725,000) (note 26).

(b)  The Company has guaranteed the Group’s bank borrowing
amounting to HK$0 (2009: HK$15,428,000) as at the end of
the reporting period.

(© At 31 March 2009, the bank borrowing of the Group was
denominated in Japanese Yen.

At 31 March 2009, the carrying amount of the Group’s bank
borrowing approximated to its fair value. The fair value of
borrowing was estimated to be the present value of its future
cash flows, discounted at prevailing interest rate at 31 March
20009.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before IRD
assessment of HK$182,812,000 (2009: HK$173,374,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$17,193,188
(2009: HK$9,865,568) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised by
these subsidiaries.
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32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2010, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding dividend taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings, that are subject to withholding dividend
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, associates, and jointly-
controlled entities established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. There was no significant
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities in Mainland China at
the end of the reporting period (2009: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

[N 33. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-Z2F Z—EZThE
2010 2009
THER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE Authorised:
3,000,000,000 f% = B 3,000,000,000 (2009: 3,000,000,000)
HECI10B TEBER ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(ZEENF:
3,000,000,000 %) 300,000 300,000
CEBITRER: Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029 18 & IR 1,197,663,029 (2009: 1,197,663,029)
HEC10B TEBER ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(ZBENF:
1,197,663,029 %) 119,766 119,766
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34. B RAREE 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

RATRMERZREST B (58
EERE Rl RHEBEAEAEERH
RERUBAELEEEHM2AER
SHE - FEZEERSHREBER
NACEE (BEBIFHTES)
AEBzHMWESESSABE - K&
EEEAIITANEAEEEERBEZ
AT - FHER-_ZEZE_FNA-_B®
Rk (BRIELLE A R85 :T Al
ERR BZBEPER BERBETE-

RETEENEEEFRERTHEZ
Ei I RE2BROEE THEBL
SELERREETFEERAQAEM
HTF?E?‘? TRMD210% 5T EFHEF
CERSHEHEREMANREAHER
BEARREMIT THITZROEE
FREIAARDNBEMEBECETRNGZ
1% o fEfA] 48 tH PR I AV B e R IR E R
—SRHEEARBRREASESRRIE -

AARAZES BETHRAEHE
Eﬂxijﬁ'&"ﬁﬂzﬁﬁiki?ﬁtﬂ{%
ERRELAREALNDBUFANITE
EECHE o O R RMEM 1218 A
BEAARRZEEZERRIBIULIFANT
EEHRETAZIHBEALIREEL
AREMBTZROBEBBARQT
EAREEHTRMD Z01%IBER

% 2 B E 385,000,000 T (HEHE
BAQTRRGER)  ISAEEREK
EREARS L#HE -

BFATEART SR ALY
BA B ELERARESGH1BIZR
BAREBEUEMELERIRE - ERH
BERREBNTEHDHESRE
BXREREBHEEMALNESRE
BEFERTEERB 2BHBER-

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of motivating, attracting and retaining eligible
participants whose contribution are vital to the long term
growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees or
officers of the Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or
any person that have business relationship with the Group. The
Scheme was adopted on 2 April 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 business days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is determinable by the directors and
is not later than the expiry date of the Scheme.
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34. B RBRESE (B) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BERARBEZTEEDHESRE
EAATERTIFNRSENARQT
BOTEREARERTEREBIAN
B mE: A2 AROERL
ARERTEYASERSE B EBRHR
&z FHRTE: Rii)A27RH
MYEE -

EARRBEELARBTFHEARIDEKER

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer, and (jii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

FRRREZLRE2ED -

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RAFR - RFTE THELIRE

The following share options were outstanding under the

fis RATE - Scheme during the year:
—E-2F =EENF
2010 2009
InFEF AT
THEE RBREHRE TEE RREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
BT ) BT )
gR grR
HK$ HK$
pershare ‘000 pershare ‘000
READ At the beginning of year 0.676 33,738 0.664 35,591
FRIRW Forfeited during the year 0.605 (449) 0.651 977)
FRIM Lapsed during the year 0.792 (16,009) 0.226 (876)
REL At the end of year 0.569 17,280 0.676 33,738
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

A e _E’:E_ .
3. BLAABRETTE (8) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RAER > RIBTE - BLAIAREZS The movements of the outstanding share options under the
HERAOT : Scheme during the year are as follows:
ARELA
Number of share options
BERRE
i ® BEARE A3 REX
“E2ENE —2-%F ZBEAH: (BEEEWA) GEXIRE ARE
MA-B EFARE FATRE FRRYR FRx¥ ZA=t-H (B.5.%) (B.A.5) ZiEE BREBAH
Exercise periods
Dates of ~ of share options
At Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed At grant of (both dates Exercise
2HE Names or categories 1 April during during during during 31March  share options* inclusive) pricesof  Atgrant date
HEHER  of participants 2009 theyear theyear theyear the year 2010  (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY) share options**  of options***
Br(8R)  Br(ER)
HKS HKS
pershare pershare
£z Directors
EfEZrpes TamWaiHo, Samsone 900,000 — — — (900,000) - 19.04.2004  20.01.2005 Zto 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
ERE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 19.04.2004  20.01.2005Z to 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
EHES TamMuiKaWai, Vivan 400,000 - - - (400,000) - 19.042004  2001.2005Ft0 0.950 0920
19.01.2010
400,000 - - — - 400,000 07.082006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
KAHE Kazuhiro Otani 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 19.04.2004  20.01.2005Zt0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
800,000 — — — (800,000) — 03.06.2005  26.04.2006 2 to 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
800,000 — — — — 800,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - — - 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008% to 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
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34. B R RERTE (&)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

AREHE
Number of share options
BERRE
i R® BEARE A3 REX
ZEENE Z2-%F ZREBH (BEERMA) EEIRE RARE
mA-B FRRE FATE FRRW FR&¥M =ZA=t-8 (B.A.5) (B.A.5) ZfTRE™  REHBH
Exercise periods
Datesof ~ of share options
At Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed At grant of (both dates Exercise
28HE Names or categories 1 April during during  during during 31March  share options* inclusive) pricesof At grant date
HEHERH  of participants 2009 theyear theyear theyear the year 2010 (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY) share options**  of options***
Br(8R)  BEx(ER
HKS HK$
pershare pershare
#2(8) Directors (continued)
3574 Lee Koon Hung 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 19.04.2004  20.01.2005Z to 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
800,000 - - - (800,000) - 03.062005  26.04.2006Z to 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
800,000 — — — — 800,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 - - - - 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008Zt0 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
ET¥ Fok Ting Yeung, James 400,000 - - - (400,000) - 19.04.2004  20.01.2005Z to 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 03.062005  26.04.2006Z to 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
400,000 - - - - 400,000 07.08.2006  15.06.2007 Zto 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
400,000 - - - - 400,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008Zto 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



%5 3 & By & (48
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
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34. BAAKRESTE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
AREHE
Number of share options
BERRE
R® IS BERRE A REE
ZEENE ZE-%F ZREBH (BEERMA) EEIRE RARE
MA-B #FRRYE FRTE FARK FRE&M =ZA=t-8 (B.A.5) (B.B.5) 2T RE™ Rl A g
Exercise periods
Dates of ~ of share options
At Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed At grant of (both dates Exercise
28HE Names or categories 1 April during  during  during during 31March  share options* inclusive) pricesof  Atgrant date
HEHEA  of participants 2009 theyear theyear theyear the year 2010 (DD.MM.YYYY)  (DD.MM.YYYY) share options** of options***
B (8R) B (8R)
HKS HK$
pershare pershare

EZ (@)  Directors (continued)

EEA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 500,000 — — — (500,000) — 19.04.2004  20.01.2005 £to 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
500,000 — — — (500,000) - 03.06.2005  26.04.2006 Z£to 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
500,000 — — - — 500,000 19.07.2006  15.06.2007 £to 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
800,000 — — - — 800,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 £to 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
13,100,000 — — - (7,400,000) 5,700,000
2t Others
B8 Employees 3,818,000 - - (42,000) (3,776,000) — 19.04.2004  20.01.2005 Eto 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
4,833,000 — — — (4,833,000 - 03.06.2005  26.04.2006 Z£to 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009
5,757,000 — — (192,000) — 5,565,000 19.07.2006  15.06.2007 £to 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
6,230,000 — —  (215,000) — 6,015,000 13.09.2007  08.08.2008 £to 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
20,638,000 — —  (449,000) (8,609,000) 11,580,000
At Total 33,738,000 — —  (449,000)  (16,009,000) 17,280,000
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34. BERRER B ()
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding during the
year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of
grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on
the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the
options. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed
immediately before the exercise date of the share options is the
weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised over all of the exercises of options within the disclosure
line.

All share options granted in prior years have been fully vested.
The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, which
were not fully vested as at 31 March 2009, was HK$947,000
of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$395,000 during the year ended 31 March 2009, and no
further share option expense is recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2010. No share option was granted during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2008 was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year
ended 31 March 2008:

TREZE Dividend yield 9.09%
SERED ] Expected volatility 43.69%
42 3 b R = Risk-free interest rate 3.87%
BEAREZFBITER (£) Expected life of options (years) 3.89
R GBT) Share prices (HK$) 0.50

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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34.

35.

BrARETS (&)
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BLTEIMARARTZRITHIANAE
8,110,000 T BZ 15 & ©

RUERHBHREAESH  X2TR
& 58175 17,280,00017 K 1T £ 8 £ R
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past one year and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
17,280,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
17,280,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$1,728,000 and share premium
of HK$8,110,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 17,280,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.44% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(@ Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
38 of the financial statements.

The Group's special reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993, and over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
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35. RESERVES (continued)

by AT (b) Company
B
i47) BRE  RRE RIERN/
HEE BABH BERE wE  (REAER BE
Retained
Share Capital Share profits/
premium  Contributed redemption option  (accumulated
account surplus reserve  reserve losses) Total
MisE TER TER TER TERT TER TERT
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-BENF At 31 March 2008
=B=+—-H 409,710 21,976 419 2,461 18,560 453,126
LURBES 4 2B % Equity-settled share
RREZ option
arrangements 34 — — — 395 — 395
KEEZHEERE  Total comprehensive
Fek] loss for the year 11 — — — — (46,207) (46,207)
i

TTHE At 31 March 2009
B=+-H 409,710

[ 4

REEZEEE  Total comprehensive

21,976 419 2,856 (27,647) 407,314

b loss for the year 11 — — — — (32,908)  (32,908)
RZZ—ZF  At31March 2010
=B=+-H 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (60,555) 374,406

KATZHBABEBERE-ANA=ZF
AABzRHB LHmAMETZEBE
HAMBBECHBATIRD ZLAFER
BAXBEEROMBETZALA
BROEEBEZRS REBREEQAE
1981 —RIARAES THERT » S
ABHRRAZREQEREEL DK -

BARARERBEFCRHERITE
CEARBREZLOFE FRUE
BRMF24AZURBRBERINTRS
ZEHBE EHRELRRETRE
B L EBEEERERDEER-

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1993, over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus
in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised.
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36. RARERE

(a)
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

()

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an independent
service provider (the “Plaintiff”) issued a legal proceeding
in Hong Kong against a subsidiary of the Group (the
“Defendant”) and a claimed against the Defendant for a
sum of US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in breach of a
service agreement dated 3 December 2004 (the
“Agreement”) and failed to make payments in
accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”). In this
connection, the Defendant also filed a claim against the
Plaintiff and alleged that the Plaintiff was in breach of the
Agreement in failing to design and develop the products
in substantial conformance to the functional specification
as defined in the Agreement. Accordingly, the Defendant
made a counterclaim against the Plaintiff for liquidated
damages in the sum of US$100,000 and other damages
to be assessed together with interests and costs (the
“Counterclaim”).

Based on the available evidence and subject to discovery
and expert evidence, the Defendant’s representing
solicitor considered that there were valid defences to the
Claims and the Defendant had a good chance of success
in the Claim and the Counterclaim. During the year,
there was no further progress noted in these Claim and
Counterclaim. As such, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision is required to be made
(2009: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, details of other

fRAREEHEBUOT : contingent liabilities in the financial statements were as
follows:
rE AT
Group Company
—E-2F ZEENF ZE-ZTF ZEENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEBER T Guarantees given to banks
BREmS in connection with
BITZER facilities granted to:
it /& 2 =) Subsidiaries — — 122,317 164,000
i3 NCT| Associates 13 104 — —
13 104 122,317 164,000

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report




B R E ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

36. RARAEE (F)
(b)

—~

&)

R-E-ZEF=A=+—RH &
BHAQNBSATFRITNWERMER
FrETERECBHAT ,%yu(_
T T L F 115,428,000 JT)

EHAEEERMES %H&“MAT
ZRITHE A EEE & A #13,000%
JT(ZFFNF 1 104,00078 7T) °

7. REMHERH

AEEABCEAEEFRARET
BFEVERBIES - MEZHEE
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b)  (continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks
by the Company were utilised to the extent of HK$0
(2009: HK$15,428,000), and the banking facilities
guaranteed by the Group to associates were utilised to
the extent of approximately HK$13,000 (2009:
HK$104,000).

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty

years.
R-ZZ-ZF=R=1+—-HB ' 4~5H At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease
CE=] 7r AEE 2 REHEPRRED payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
ENHESLE REEERHTEN follows:
T :
&
Group
—E-ZBF ZEEIF
2010 2009
TER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 8,244 8,912
RE—FZERE In the second to fifth years,
(BEEEMSF) inclusive 10,870 16,327
BB AEF After five years 4,287 7,442
23,401 32,681
RBEHR RO ETMEAL At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
EHEZH - significant operating lease arrangements.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

38. &I

BREXKMEIZ2KEREREFE
S AEERBERRTIBETIER
AE

38. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 37 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rE

Group
—E-Z2F ZEEIF
2010 2009
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI AERIERE Contracted, but not provided for:

ME- -BMERRK Property, plant and equipment 29,770 1,609

REIBEHR - A0 F B EEME KK
B(ZZZTNF 8-

39 AEALXRF

@ KBELSHBHRRAGIEEHFL
NREH REFR XEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitments (2009: Nil).

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following

THERBEAETRS: material transactions with related parties during the year:
rE
Group
—EB-BF CZEENF
2010 2009
Fit 3£ THERT THERT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
AAREE - QR Royalty expense charged by
UEY 2 fF AfEX H an associate of the Group (i) 1,428 3,989
m—HENTBE &M Purchases of products from
an associate (i) 6,531 4,740

2010 BFH{SE Annual Report
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BE-ZE-Z2F=A=+t—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

30. BEAETR S (8)

(a)

(i

ERAEXHERBEAREE K
BAARAFAFHENE L
ErEMNEEMTEHR
MRS HIREE DA RZ
M B 2 B T ET 3L 2 fE PR s R
7 o

AERELAABECERIRE
HBENRAKRTHIERERPZ

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(@

(continued)

Notes:

(i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the number
of electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of
the Group during the year with the terms as stipulated in
the royalty agreement between the associate and that
subsidiary.

(i) The purchases from an associate were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered by the

NEERRIFRGETELR - associate to its major customers.
AEBTEEEAS R : (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

—B-FF CZEBTAF

2010 2009

FERT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

HHEEREA Short term employee benefits 13,120 13,482

HRBHBES Performance related incentive payments — 20

EEELARRERF Employee share option benefits — 173

BB Pension scheme contributions 462 462
TRNEBEEEAE Total compensation paid to

Z RN A5 key management personnel 13,582 14,137

EEWE-SHBEHNUBER
TS

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.



5t 75 #R AR Y 5E (AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-2-2F=A=t+-ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

0. ZERE S ZE€@MIT A 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
ZEeHTENBKERARAZEREAE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
W instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
S i AEH
2010 Group
CHEE Financial assets
BOFEEZA
BERZ
EREE— EXRk AHEE
BEEE FE W BR X cHEE et
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit Available-for-
or loss - held Loans and sale financial
for trading receivables assets Total
TER TER TER TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments = = 26,094 26,094
EHZs Long term deposits = 1,556 = 1,556
EWEZRX Trade receivables = 84,617 = 84,617
S AR FIE Financial assets included

BEREMEW  inprepayments,
IRRZEMEE  deposits and other

receivables — 54,227 — 54,227
FE U B & N FBREX Amounts due from associates = 2,833 = 2,833
W —tE4E%  Amount due from
BEREX a jointly-controlled
(FftzE18) entity (note 18) — 4,978 — 4,978
BAFETA Investments at fair value
BR&zZRE through profit or loss 40,654 = — 40,654
BeRkIBEEEME  Cashand cash equivalents
BH — 201,343 — 201,343
40,654 349,554 26,094 416,302
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. ZEHE S z2EMI A 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
(#8) CATEGORY (continued)
—E-ZF &
2010 Group
cHEE Financial liabilities
BAFELA
BRkz ZEH
cHeE— BAGtEZ
BEEE cHEeE wEt
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost Total
THER THER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ENESRAREMNEZE  Trade and bills payables — 83,750 83,750
HAEEMENERRR Financial liabilities included
EiaEzemas in other payables and accruals — 22,614 22,614
TESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 35 = 35
35 106,364 106,399

m S (HBK) BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

40. ZEBRIE D 2eMT A

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

(#8) CATEGORY (continued)
—EENE rE
2009 Group
CREE Financial assets
BEAFERA
BRxZ
ERMEE— EXR AHEE
BEEE FE s BR 3K TREE et
Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss Loansand  Available-for-sale
— held for trading receivables  financial assets Total
FET FET FHER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments — — 26,094 26,094
EH%R 4 (M5E22) Long term deposits (note 22) — 1,558 — 1,558
FEW B 5 BR R Trade receivables — 114,523 — 114,523
SIAEARE Financial assets included
BEREMEW  in prepayments, deposits
BRA2EREE  and other receivables — 42,721 — 42,721
R AT BRI Amounts due from associates — 3,738 — 3,738
Bl —4E%MHE  Amount due from
E a joint-venture partner — 1,680 — 1,680
BEAFERZRA Investments at fair value
BRRZRE through profit or loss 40,890 — — 40,890
TESRMIA Derivative financial
instruments 596 — — 596
BEeKBESESE  Cashand cash equivalents
IHH — 227,296 — 227,296
41,486 391,516 26,094 459,096

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. BB zE€/mI A

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

(8) CATEGORY (continued)
—EENE ¥ 3
2009 Group
cREE Financial liabilities
BAFERA
BEx2 R
cREE— BAGEZ
BIEEE NN et
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss Financial
- held for liabilities at
trading  amortised cost Total
THER THERT TAERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FENE S EREFRREMNZHE Trade and bills payables — 78,256 78,256
NAEMENERRR Financial liabilities included
EirEBEzemEes in other payables and accruals — 14,972 14,972
B —HEES Amount due to a jointly-controlled entity
BREX — % %
TTESRMIE Derivative financial instruments 395 — 395
MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing — 15,428 15,428
395 108,752 109,147

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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BE-Z-ZF=-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

4. ZEHE S z2EMI A 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
(&) CATEGORY (continued)
ZENSMIENBEHRZETDE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
mE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
FNNE|
Company
SREE Financial assets
ERRERERR

Loans and receivables

—E-Z2F C—EZhE

2010 2009
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mg A AR (MEE17) Interests in subsidiaries (note 17) 687,237 719,246
FEUWLF B A Bl BRFX Due from subsidiaries 3,000 3,000
NABMARE RER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HMEWERAZ2EMEE deposits and other receivables 205 206
RERREEEEA Cash and bank balances 197 188
690,639 722,640
cREaE Financial liabilities
RBERITEZSHEE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
—E-ZBF ZEEhF
2010 2009
FEx FB T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AR ERR (MfEE17) Due to subsidiaries (note 17) 195,314 194,356

2010 BFHKSE Annual Report m



B R EE ()

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-Z-Z2F=A=t—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March 2010

1. A EER

REERAUTERRBUBE R H
BERMITANQFE:

5-F: BREELEASENER
TS HRE CREBE) B
EHATE

BoE: UMGERMEENAF
B BZGEERMHAEE
EWAZEOEEIBE
ERARENTHSHE

M
[
i |

D ERMEEN QT
B BZEERMABE
ERASHIFERARE
BENTHBEBE(TTRE
EIRNES )

R-ZEBE-—FEFE=ZRA=+—-—H &x&EH
EERAFEIAEZEHIANT :

R-ZZE-—ZF=A=+—HUAQA¥
B EB2EE:

41. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 March 2010, the Group held the following financial
instruments measured at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010:

BEAFEERA  Investments at fair value
BER2ZEE through profit or loss

1B BB E=B wEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
40,654 — — 40,654

RIE-—ZEF=ZHA=+—HUL¥F
EitBzAE:

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010:

£—E B EF=B @at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fTHES®M I A Derivative finandial
instruments — 35 — 35

MBE-F-TF=A=+t—-HLHF
E F-EBERF-EZBILELQFTE
AREER TEAVEITEEANE
HE=/E-

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
no transfer into or out of Level 3.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited



5 %% & MY o (8
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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12 FREAKRSEEERKZE  42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEEBFECHMIABERE EW
BEZRAREMENER RERE
HER BUEZRRARAMEMCIK

ES
Mo

rEBERIAEENTIEARBE
ER RBESRERRIIEREE-
ExEndREZEELERBHK
BRI o

= EE ka2

AEBzEERBRETEREEERE
SHREF -TEERKEE LKXERD
HHERBIEKRZEF RZZE—
EE=ZA=1+—HBAEAREFHHE
WESRFAEHEBEI%(ZEEN
FHEB5T7%) MELEFPRERE
REMER EBHAEELEES
EREREETE - ABEERBE
ZEREE - AEEEEECER—4AA
E EBEEECERE CEFMRE
ftl B4 72 /7 0 DAHE 4R B ERER 3 18 e UR
EEBEL i AEBETEHE
MEEENEKRE SRR 2T E R
BoOUBABRTIEWESEEEESA
ZHEEBBE BRUME AEEESR
AXEBECEFERBREEEEEL K
i P AL o

HRAGEEEER T 2EEEEZE
ZHETEE RUYBERRHEEA

0
oA °

rEEEtBEREE (BEREERES
FEER  UHEERE - BAFER
ABBRRZRERETITETLIR) 2=
ERBREABBOFTAE MEARZE
SLERBESEREETRZKREE-

BRAKEFEHRERRE ZRANZ
FERR HBBERMBHERMT24

K-

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly comprise
investments, trade and other receivables, cash and short term
deposits, trade and bills payables, and other payables.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has been largely dependent on a small
number of customers for a substantial portion of its business.
The top five customers represent over 51% (2009: over 57%)
of the amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2010. The
failure of these customers to make the required payments
could have a substantial negative impact on the Group’s
operating results. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss and
certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 24
to the financial statements.
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2 BIRAREEEERKE

)

=

REE S R

AEBUREURDESRETAE
RHETEREAR ZITAERHES
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TEEMR -

AEBMERRTHERAE FHEER
SEMRBEHPFBIRETE R
E-FEF=ZA=+—HB FAEEWLE
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RBEER UEBFTARBRARES
HE . AEESRMABEZERBHR
mT

rEE
Group

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity

of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of banking
facilities. At 31 March 2010, the Group had no outstanding
bank borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

—2-FF
2010
=@R=ZE
DR —&5=
EBER PR=EA +=M@EA "E Bt
3to
Less than less than 1to5
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years Total

FET FERT FERT FERT FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

ENEZEFKE Trade and bills

FEE payables 48,626 34,724 134 266 83,750
H {th FE 1 BR X Other payables 22,614 — — — 22,614
fTESmIT A Derivative financial

instruments — — 22 13 35
MEBEERT Guarantees given to

BN a8y banks in connection

EAEmS T with facilities

RITZER granted to

associates 13 — — — 13
71,253 34,724 156 279 106,412

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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2. HERKREEAZREE  42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
RBES R (8) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEE —EENF
Group 2009
=@AE
PR
EBER LPR=MEA +=@A HBE
Lessthan 3 toless than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB SR Trade and bills payables 28,983 45,500 3,773 78,256
EREE
H fth FE A BR X Other payables 7,790 7,093 89 14,972
A —HE3ES]  Amount due to a jointly-
BRI controlled entity 96 — — 9%
fTE€mIT A Derivative financial
instruments — 395 — 395
M ERITIEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowing — 15,428 — 15,428
BEBEERT Guarantees given to
BE AT banks in in connection
EREmET with facilities granted
AT 2R to associates 104 — — 104
36,973 68,416 3,862 109,251

RB|EPR LAEITHRBERFER
EE - ARFATHEEZERBER

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

F1 N undiscounted payments, is as follows:
AT —E-FF
Company 2010
BB et
Over 1 year Total
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AN ERNGIE R Due to subsidiaries 195,314 195,314
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42,

PR E R R

m,

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

RBES R (8) Liquidity risk (continued)
AT —EEBREF
Company 2009
RER HBiE—F Bt
On demand Over 1 year Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET KB A B BRI Due to subsidiaries — 194,356 194,356
REBEERTHE Gurantees given to banks in connection
NEIRNERZEM with facilities granted to a subsidiary
BTIRTZER 15,428 — 15,428
15,428 194,356 209,784
S 3 B Foreign currency risk

AEESRXRZERAR - ZZAR
RELESUNHEENIBE (BEUmy
BEEMWRMN AEBEERNEKRES
RRANEMNEZRAUNNETE R
—E-ZFF=ZRAR=t—-R AKEH
RANETERNINESH  URELE
EigMRERER 2SR X
ZEERIMESHNELAFEHBEE
Z AR

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. Certain
trade receivables and payables of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. At 31 March 2010, the Group has
entered into certain forward currency contracts to reduce the
foreign currency exposures on the Group’s overseas investments,
however, they did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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42. BHEEBREEBZERBEE  42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
ShEE R B (4E) Foreign currency risk (continued)
DTREBEREHMBHEZTEN The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
BRT ARERAEERZ2SET the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
BEE BHREHRBEREFRAE Renminbi and Japanese Yen exchange rates, with all other
BreHRE (HEEMHEEREEZA variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to
EEEHE changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
AR
(B1R)
2BESL pa -3
Change in
Change in profit/(loss)
rate before tax
FExT
% HK$'000
—E-2F 2010
EBTRUTEBER If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
A :
AR Renminbi 3 1,442
H Japanese Yen 8 3,408
ERATHUTEBER If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
FE:
AR® Renminbi 3 (1,442)
H Japanese Yen 8 (3,408)
—EBAF 2009
EBTHAUTESER If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
BE:
AR Renminbi 5 4,510
H Japanese Yen 8 43
EBTHUTERER If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
FE:
AR® Renminbi 5 (4,510)
H Japanese Yen 8 (43)
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44.

BHEREERE

(,,.a )

= RBUR

EXRER

AEBCEAXAER T EERDRE
FEBEFELE YHESREZE
RER  UXFHEHEBRRESRRE
e

FEBERHEARE  WEEEE
MR ZEEBEHFRE - ERIGHAAR
HEXAEBK AEERSHEIRM
FRRZERE -BRREREERRH

THRO RBE-Z-ZF=Z/A=
T-—HLER=-ZZAF=A=1+—~H
LE&EFE HER BEYBEFILES

o

$$u/)lb§]ttt (Iﬁi}jééﬁ?l’/{lllb
BRE)EFRER - FAEEZBER/ER

42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2010 and 31 March 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s policy is

Btk R BBE —  SREHAREBZR to maintain the current ratio over one. The current ratios as at
BLEERMT : the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
E
Group
—E-EF —EENF
2010 2009
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE Current assets 517,580 534,726
REEE Current liabilities 175,489 158,414
BN L 2R Current ratio 2.95 3.38
s [—]
LB F 43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

BB RRME22ME  ERAF
ERAFME T REETNE BT B R
HER BBRRAANETHEHB RERK
ZE?EE@EE&MHA¥EEE°®M’
ETHBRFEEFTIEUFEERF
FZEEiﬁﬁ/it& u+f§i2°

BB RZALE

AUBRER-ZF-—ZFFLARHEHE
BESESEHAERKETD -

44,

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the
current year, the presentation of certain items and balances in
the financial statements have been revised to comply with the
new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 6 July 2010.

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AMBELFAREERY BRI AT -8

This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

4 o
¥E RESULTS
BZE=BA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31st March,
—EERX —EE+FE —ZTET)N\F ZTTHEFE =ZFT-ZTF
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
FHT FHT FHET FHT FHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
A Revenue 1,490,757 1,237,317 940,732 752,605 663,261
BADER, (F8) Profit/(Loss) before tax 76,271 77,781 (16,579) (64,468) (21,990)
A Income tax (21,880) (17,873) 1,684 (279) (12,942)
AEEER,(B5HE)  Profit/(Loss) for the year 54,391 59,908 (14,895) (64,747) (34,932)
BAEEFR, (BEB) : Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
AARREREA Equity holders of
the Company 54,391 59,324 (15,250) (64,673) (34,256)
LPERRER Minority interests — 584 355 (74) (676)
AEEER,(B5E)  Profit/(Loss) for the year 54,391 59,908 (14,895) (64,747) (34,932)
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—8
As at 31st March,
—EERE ZBELE ZEENF ZZTEThE =ZT-FE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
FHT THT FHBT FHT FTHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BESE Total assets 854,940 859,351 775,755 687,000 670,086
EEH8E Total liabilities (255,092) (250,181) (190,282) (158,414) (175,489)
599,848 609,170 585,473 528,586 494,597
ARARREFEA Equity attributable to
FEAf B #E equity holders of the
Company 599,001 607,699 583,617 524,458 491,142
LPERRER Minority interests 847 1,471 1,856 4,128 3,455
599,848 609,170 585,473 528,586 494,597
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AEBR-_Z-ZEF=ZA=+—-BEHEETE

MEZHBWOT

8 NE

Name/location

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31st March,

2010 are set out below:

5l
Type

F 1

Lease term

HEWE:

Leasehold properties:

EMIEHR L2
B13-245TH R

b EEP3SRAFEE AL

Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3

on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza

9 Kai Cheung Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

2. HERZERZEEETR
REMRZHE
EYEER
E e
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

S (EK)BRAT Group Sense (International) Limited

T

Medium-term lease

T

Medium-term lease



EEEEH

GroupSense

EE (B BIRAR
Group Sense (International) Ltd.

E AT & B EREGETE fAR R E 6

6th Floor, Enterprise place, No.5 Science Park West Avenue,
Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

www.gsl.com.hk
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